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Tar Mans Neck 

Dayton’s 
Neck  

Mastic  
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Presentation Notes
Historically, places within a general community were identified by the necks of land. Necks are delineated by “water fences,” or creeks, considered sort of like peninsulas. In Wertheim Refuge’s history Yaphank Neck was the most contentious. Throughout the early years the whole area was known as Fire Place/Fireplace and/or (after 1853) Southaven/South Haven, a contraction of South Brookhaven. When the first post office arrived in1805 it was located on Fire Place Neck and all mail coming to Bellport (Occombomock Neck), Brookhaven, South Haven and Mastic were addressed to Fire Place. In 1853 the post office was moved to near Carmans River and mail for the area mentioned above was addressed to South Haven (sometimes Southaven). 



 

Historically, Carmans River was considered the best and 
most abundant piece of nature money could buy, and 
almost the entire river was owned by only a few of the 
wealthiest people. One, Maurice Wertheim, eventually 
left 1,700 acres to “the people of America.” 



According to historian Thomas R. Bayles, the source of Carmans River originates north 
of Middle Country Road in what used to be called Pfeiffer’s Pond. 

Courtesy Longwood Library 



Courtesy of Gil Hanson, Stony Brook University 

Wertheim Refuge 
lies entirely within 
the Carmans River 
valley. 

Carmans River is the 
only river on Long 
Island to cut through 
the Ronkonkoma 
Moraine. 
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Presentation Notes
Carmans River is the only river on Long Island to cut through the Ronkonkoma Moraine. This is because it was formed while the ½ mile high glacier was still in place, from the ice melt of the glacier. Wildlife/food resource is most abundant near sources of fresh water. Because this is the longest and most powerful river on Long Island it would have a large, easy to catch migratory fish population especially in the colder months when the bay was more difficult to harvest.  It is the crown jewel of Long Island rivers. 

Flow on the lower Peconic River, as measured at the USGS gauging station located 0.4 miles west of Riverhead, has ranged from 10.4 mgd (1966) to 43.9 mgd (1984), with a long-term (1942-92) average of 24.0 mgd (Spinello et al., 1993); an estimated 1.4 mgd, or 6% of the long-term average flow, is runoff. (SCDHS 1987). At the mouth of the river, just east of County Route 105, the average total freshwater flow rate is estimated to be 34 mgd, which includes 14 mgd of groundwater estimated by the USGS to be discharged to the river downstream of the USGS gauging station. (SCDHS 1992).The Carmans River flows south through a gap in the Ronkonkoma moraine from its headwaters located in the area of Artist Lake in Middle Island.... Farther south, the rate of discharge of groundwater to the river increases as it traverses the outwash plain, and by the time the river reaches the boundary of the CPB at Route 27, some 12 miles south of its starting point, the average flow rate has increased to about 35 mgd. The southernmost 3 miles of the river are tidal, where it gains an estimated additional 11.5 mgd of groundwater, bringing the total freshwater discharge into Bellport Bay at the mouth of the river to 46.5 mgd. (Warren et al., 1968). 



Map by Suffolk 
County Health 
Department, 

Office of Ecology, 
2006 

US Fish and 
Wildlife Service 

Over its 10-mile 
course, the 
Carmans River 
only drops 50’.  

72-square mile 
drainage area. 

Courtesy Suffolk County 
Health Dept. 
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Presentation Notes
The earlier names for the river were Connectiquot or Connecticut.  The native Americans may have also called it Cumsequogue. 

The river is called the Connecticut or Sebonack River in the 1704 Will of William Smith.



Crossing the Sound, Dr. F.R.Siminoff 

Tribal territories about 1630.  
Most of the modern towns were established after 1630. 

The only Amerindians living on Long Island were Delaware Algonquians. Throughout the Island, they 
spoke the same language, shared social, cultural and religious beliefs, and intermarried between villages. 
Different areas were lead by local Sachems. It is said that about 6,000-7,000 Algonquians lived in the 
general area of today’s Brookhaven Town during the early 1600s when the first settlers arrived. Eastern 
Long Island Indians were known for making fine wampum, the currency used by all Indians east of the 
Mississippi river. The Unkechaugs depended largely on the produce of the river and bay for their food.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes

Above map Source: Crossing the Sound, Dr. F.R.Siminoff. This is a “snapshot” of the indigenous people of Long Island taken in the early 1600s. Algonguin culture on Long Island had evolved over the course of centuries. The Unkechaugs of Long Island were at the peak of their civilization when smallpox and Anglo settlement/way of life (eg., wage earners) ended it. 

Long Island Amerindians were a large subfamily of the Algonquin people in eastern North America. 

Books “1491” & “1493” by Charles Mann has useful information about aboriginal people migrations, Amerindian populations and demise due to smallpox and introduced diseases. I believe that currently Dr. John Strong of Southampton is probably the most knowledgeable person of the history of Algonquin peoples of eastern Long Island. 

Definition tribe |trīb|noun1 -a social division in a traditional society consisting of families or communities linked by social, economic, religious, or blood ties, with a common culture and dialect, typically having a recognized leader : indigenous Indian tribes | the Celtic tribes of Europe.

Interesting that today the emblem for the Unkechaugs is a turtle.

http://www.kidport.com/reflib/socialstudies/nativeamericans/algonquian.htm
Both Algonkin and Algonquin are correct spellings for the name of the tribe, but Algonquian either refers to their language or, collectively, to the group of tribes that speak related Algonquian languages. The source of Algonkin is unclear, other than the names of their bands; the Algonkin do not appear to have had a name for themselves as people.
 
"Algonquian" is not the name of a native tribe or nation; it is a language family, like "Roman" or "Indo-European". There are no "Algonquian Indians". There are dozens of North American Nations that speak Algonquian language all across the United States. The languages and their speakers are as different from each other as French and Spanish and Italian are. Most of the New England tribes spoke Algonquian languages, and many of the "Indian" words common in English today - such as raccoon, succotash, Massachusetts, moccasin, etc. - are from one or another of the Algonquian languages, such as Abenaki, Wampanoag, Nipmuc, Penboscot, Shawnee and Delaware.





Courtesy Suffolk County Historical Society 

By 1700, most of the local tribal communities of Delaware-Algonquins, called  
Unkechaugs, were decimated by disease. Not understanding the white man’s idea 
of land ownership, they gave away their land, as well as their right to hunt and 
fish on it, for mere trinkets. Like indigenous peoples elsewhere on Long island, 
most turned to wage labor with many Carmans River-area Unkechaugs going to 
sea. They often married with Black slaves and thereby sacrificed their legal 
freedom.  
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Presentation Notes
References: Crossing the Sound by by Prof Faren Siminoff; From Unkechaug to Poospatuce, by Alicia Gonzonlez, National Park Service; number articles and books by Prof John Strong

In the 1630s, the Connecticut Valley was in turmoil. The Pequot aggressively worked to extend their area of control, at the expense of the Wampanoag to the north, the Narragansett   to the east, the Connecticut River Valley Algonquins and Mohegan to the west, and the Algonquian people of present-day Long Island  to the south. The tribes contended for political dominance and control of the European fur trade. A series of smallpox epidemics over the course of the previous three decades had severely reduced the Native American populations due to their lack of immunity to the disease. As a result, there was a power vacuum in the area.

The 1634 Pequot War was an armed conflict between the Pequot tribe and an alliance of the English colonists of the Massachusetts Bay, Plymouth and Saybrook colonies and their Native American allies , which occurred between 1634 and 1638. The Pequots lost the war. At the end, about seven hundred Pequots had been killed or taken into captivity. Hundreds of prisoners were sold into slavery to the West Indies. Other survivors were dispersed. This event was not lost on the Unkechaugs, who had been paying “tribute to the Pequots, and influenced their relationship with the settlers when the settlers arrived in their territory in 1655. 

Note: Suffolk County historians, such as Bailey and Bayles, have written that there were 13 tribes, some local historians still repeat this. This claim has been discredited by anthropologists, - there were only groups or bands of Delaware Algonguins, My understanding is that there were many villages, various sizes, perhaps several along Carmans River. The general area of what is today Brookhaven Town the groups of Algonguins were called Unkechaugs led by a local subsachem such as  Tobaccus in the 1600s (his boss was Wyandanch, the Montauk chief).  There were also village leaders, larger area leaders and the grand sachem in the 1600s, Wyandanch. The notion of 13 tribes probably originates from white settlers dealing with area village leaders and the need for a recognized local leader’s signature on land deeds (in addition to the sachem’s). The various Unkechaug communities, who may not have understood what “tribe” meant when asked what their tribe was gave the Anglos the name of the place they lived. 

For the Algonguins on LI, it is said that the LI Algonquins dialect varied in different in places across the island. 

For a typical local Historian’s (vs. anthropologist's) view of the Algonquins,  See: http://www.longwood.k12.ny.us/history/indian/longislandindians.htm  (The Long Island Indians By Thomas Bayles)

tribe |trīb|noun1 a social division in a traditional society consisting of families or communities linked by social, economic, religious, or blood ties, with a common culture and dialect, typically having a recognized leader : indigenous Indian tribes | the Celtic tribes of Europe.

Sachem, From Wikipedia- A sachem or sagamore is a paramount chief among the Algonquians or other northeast American tribes.

Paumanok is a term in the Renneiu language indicating “land of tribute,”

conferdation of  Delaware Algonquins 



Watercolors by John 
White  (1540 – 1593). 
Left - His painting of an 
Algonquian village 
stands out as one of the 
most detailed depictions 
of indigenous Algonquin 
village life to survive 
from the sixteenth 
century. Note in the 
painting that there was 
some agriculture in the 
16th century. 
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White also had a remarkable ability for “zooming out” from a scene to create an imagined isometric perspective. His painting of the above Algonquian village stands out as one of the most detailed depictions of indigenous American village life to survive from the sixteenth century.

"Algonquian" is not the name of a native tribe or nation; it is a language family, like "Roman" or "Indo-European". There are no "Algonquian Indians". There are dozens of North American Nations that speak Algonquian language all across the United States. The languages and their speakers are as different from each other as French and Spanish and Italian are. Most of the New England tribes spoke Algonquian languages, and many of the "Indian" words common in English today - such as raccoon, succotash, Massachusetts, moccasin, etc. - are from one or another of the Algonquian languages, such as Abenaki, Wampanoag, Nipmuc, Penboscot, Shawnee and Delaware.	

About 1,000 BC, Long Island’s Delaware Algonquin people began using horticultural techniques, and small permanent villages evolved across the Island, mainly along the shores. The main local village was along Unkechaug Creek in today’s Shirley (where Tobaccus, who signed many of the land sales, was buried in 1700). It is said that one of their meeting places was at today’s Indian Landing in the refuge on the east side of Carmans River.
	




Photo courtesy U.S. 
History Images, 
Algonquin.  

Long Island and the 
Carmans River area was 
home to the Delaware 
Algonquin people.  
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Photo from U.S. History Images,  http://ushistoryimages.com/algonquin.shtm

Algonquian either refers to their language or, collectively, to the group of tribes that speak related Algonquian languages. The source of Algonkin is unclear, other than the names of their bands; the Algonkin do not appear to have had a name for themselves as people.


By 1700, most of the local bands, or groups, of Delaware-Algonquins, called Unkechaugs, were decimated by disease. Not understanding the white man’s idea of land ownership, they gave away their land, as well as their right to hunt and fish on it, for mere trinkets. Like indigenous peoples elsewhere on Long island, most turned to wage labor with many Carmans River-area Unkechaugs going to sea. They often married with Black slaves and thereby sacrificed their legal freedom. 

According to one website: http://www.kidport.com/reflib/socialstudies/nativeamericans/algonquian.htm
Both Algonkin and Algonquin are correct spellings for the name of the tribe, but Algonquian either refers to their language or, collectively, to the group of tribes that speak related Algonquian languages. The source of Algonkin is unclear, other than the names of their bands; the Algonkin do not appear to have had a name for themselves as people.
 
"Algonquian" is not the name of a native tribe or nation; it is a language family, like "Roman" or "Indo-European". There are no "Algonquian Indians". There are dozens of North American Nations that speak Algonquian language all across the United States. The languages and their speakers are as different from each other as French and Spanish and Italian are. Most of the New England tribes spoke Algonquian languages, and many of the "Indian" words common in English today - such as raccoon, succotash, Massachusetts, moccasin, etc. - are from one or another of the Algonquian languages, such as Abenaki, Wampanoag, Nipmuc, Penboscot, Shawnee and Delaware.






Courtesy Algonquin 
Indian Council 

Algonquin mother 
and child late 
1800s.  
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Photo: Algonquin Indian Council,  http://indianspictures.blogspot.com/2012/01/american-indian-pictures-of-algonquin.html

Algonquian either refers to their language or, collectively, to the group of tribes that speak related Algonquian languages. The source of Algonkin is unclear, other than the names of their bands; the Algonkin do not appear to have had a name for themselves as people.
 





1585 watercolors by John White of Algonquin cooking. 

The Unkechaugs depended largely on the produce of the river 
and bay for their food.  



The Native Americans called it the Connetquot or Connecticut, meaning long river; the settlers called 
it the East Connecticut, the West being today’s Connetquot River. In this 1797 map, which shows the 
inlet that opened in 1772, the highlighted areas show the land that was most valuable to the settlers, 
the salt hay meadows.  

Shaded areas indicate valuable 
salt hay for harvest or 
meadowland for cow pasture.  

Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 
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Presentation Notes
The earlier names for the river were Connectiquot or Connecticut.  The native Americans may have also called it Cumsequogue



Survey by the 
Tangier Smiths, late 
1800s-1900 

In 1657, Narcomac 
Meadows (south 
of Indian Landing), 
along with some 
Mastic Meadows, 
was the  first 
parcel of land on 
the Carmans River 
that the white 
settlers in 
Setauket bought 
from the 
Unkechaugs on 
the south shore of 
Brookhaven Town. 
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Because Tobaccus, the local sachem residing at the main Unkechaug village along Unkechaug Creek (first creek east of today’s Smith Point bridge) was unhappy that the settlers paid Wyandanch (grand sachem living in Montauk) for the meadow lands along Carmans River and Mastic Beach and didn’t include him, the settlers decided to also go through the same sale & deed signing/payment with Tobaccus. This happened in 1675 and became known as the “New Purchase” (the old purchase being the land west of Carmans in 1664). 

It is interesting to note that because the Unkechaugs didn’t fully understand land ownership/selling confusion continued until William Tangier Smith arrived in 1691. The Unkechaugs often sold the same piece of land to different settlers causing problems. Tangier Smith settled all these disputes by buying everybody out as well as buying the remaining ~100 square miles from Tobaccus. 

”…Francis muncy, before he died, exchanged his meadow at the fire place, in the ould purchas, with Samuel daiton, for his lott of medow at Seabamuck, in the nue purchas.” 

From Town Historian Osborn Shaw’s 1933 paper: “ I must now outline for you, the history of your village, but before we do, I want to correct an inexcusable error which may mislead any student of your history.  On page 266 of Vol. II of the History of Long Island, written by the late William S. Pelletreau of Southampton and published in 1903, will be found this statement:  "West of Connecticut River comes the long extent of territory now known as Brookhaven and Bellport, but originally Fire Place and Occombomack.  The earliest deed is dated July 20, 1657 when Wyandance, the Montauk Sachem and Wenecohage sell to Richard Woodhull 'for himself and the rest of his neighbors at Setalcott two great necks of meadow lying from a river called Coneticott to a river called Wegonthotok'".  I hate to have to contradict such an eminent authority as Mr. Pelletreau, but the facts demand that I do.  The deed does  not apply to either Fire Place or Bellport at all, but covers the meadows known as Noccomock Meadows on the east side of the Connecticut River and the meadows in Mastic.  The "River called Wegonthotok" is what we know today as Forge or Mastic River….

“We shall have to begin by crossing the Island and starting with the first settlement in the Town of Brookhaven at Setauket where, all that is definitely known, is that a small group settled there from New England sometime between the fourteenth day of April 1655 and the first day of August 1657 -- the event probably taking place sometime in the Spring or Summer of 1655.  The little colony soon became well established and through the foresight of it leaders, but principly (sic) through Richard Woodhull, began to buy up as much of the Indian lands as the red-skins would sell and this is especially true of any land containing meadows which were much prized because of the salt hay and grass that the meadows produced.  Very little cleared land existed at the time and what they laboured to clear from the virgin forests was put to such cultivated crops as grain, peas, flax, vegetables and fruits, depending almost entirely on the meadows for hay and for pasturing their cattle.  In two years after the settlement began, the Mastic and Noccomock meadows were purchased, but some cloud appears to have hung over the title and it was not until a second or confirmatory deed was secured from the Indians in1675, that the title was cleared and the meadows used…” 

Re: After 1693. The thing about royal patents is that they didn’t extinguish the title or rights of those who had made purchases from the Indians before the patent was granted.  And the patent itself required first that the land be purchased from the Indians.  So the Town still owned lands at Narcomac meadow. –Richard Thomas 




Salt marsh meadows were precious to the early settlers 
because it was land that they didn’t have to clear and 
cultivate to provide grazing for their cattle . Salt hay, which 
initially bought the settlers down from Setauket, was also 
used for insulation in housing and for ice houses in which 
winter ice was stacked and perishable food was stored. 

Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 

Carmans 
River 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Picture was taken by Fredrick Kost, a local Brookhaven artist, circa 1905 at the end of Beaver Dam Road. 



To regulate the taking of salt hay, the Town declared the second 
Tuesday in September as “Marshing Day.” In this circa 1900 
photo, Wallace Swezey (179 Old Stump Road) is shown with his 
harvest. Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
From Brookhaven Town Records: 30 July 1675, Richard Floyd trades his lot, No. 25, of meadow and upland in Fire Place with Joseph Davis for meadow at Unkechauge in Mastic. 



Shading by 
John Deitz 

Much of the 
western portion 
of today’s refuge 
was purchased 
from the 
Unkechaugs in 
1664 by the Town 
government in 
Setauket.  

Yaphank Neck 
was purchased in 
1688 by an 
individual, 
Samuel Terrill.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The name Yaphank is said to be the Algonquin word meaning “by the river’s edge” or “the bank of a river.”

The 1664 “Old Purchase at the South” became Southaven, Brookhaven and Bellport and a little of East Patchogue. Long Island was part of the Connecticut colony at the time,)

Why Yaphank neck was excluded from the 1664 purchase is unknown. Perhaps because a village of Unkechaugs still lived upon it? Anyway, it was purchased by Samuel Terrill in 1688 (as in Terrill River). It appears that individuals, (a Town Freeholder), not just the Town, was able to purchase land from the Indians, in this case from an indigenous native named Wopehege. (Wonder what happened to Tobaccus , was he still alive?)

Yaphank Neck: (dark grey shading).The eastern part of Brookhaven and South Haven Hamlets was not included in the Town's "Old Purchase at the South".  In 1688, the Indian Wopehege sold a relatively small parcel of land to a Town Freeholder, Samuel Terrell, which completed the land purchases that now comprise the Brookhaven/South Haven Hamlets.  The deed for this tract was signed 13 Nov 1688 and has more of the character of a modern conveyance.  The parcel was known as "Yamphank Neck" and is the tract of land between Yaphank Creek (aka Barteau Creek) on the west to the Connecticut River (now known as the Carman's River) on the east. 

Unfortunately, five years later this parcel was also included in the first patent from Governor Fletcher to the Manor of St George and the Tangier Smith family -- their lands otherwise being on the east side of the Carman's River.  For two hundred years there were legal disputes because of the overlapping.  (The governor changed the rules for land ownership circa 1691 when the Smith’s arrived. The purchase was valid only if the governor approved it). The Neck remained theoretically under the jurisdiction of the Lord of the Manor until 1789 when the Manor was formally dissolved and annexed to the Town of Brookhaven by the newly independent government and the Lord's governing authority ended (although his property ownership rights remained).  As a practical matter, however, it appears from the Town records that the Town believed that it had jurisdiction on the Yaphank Neck and that it was in fact largely governed by the Town during the Colonial period.





From 1693 to 
1789, today’s 
Wertheim 
Refuge was 
part of a 
feudal Manor 

M. Van Lith The 1708 Manor 
House 

John Mayhew salesman 

Presenter
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Wertheim Refuge was once part of a Feudal Manor. 

Long Island was considered personal real estate of the sovereign and considered the property of King William and Queen Mary. In 1687 Colonel William Smith purchased much the land outlined above from the Unkechaugs (more complicated than this) and in 1693 was granted a patent for the Manor of St George. The portions of this map north from the middle of the island and west of the Carmans River are inaccurate and not part of the Manor, see next slide. The above map was purchased by me (from the Manor of St St George museum, I think) circa 1960. See below for more details. 

The Manor of St. George occupied nearly a third of modern Brookhaven Town from virtually the Carman's River eastward to the Town of Southampton, and from the Atlantic Ocean to the middle of the island, an area John Deitz estimated to be about 90 square miles of upland. If including the Great South Bay and Fire Island it would be much more.  Also included was a noncontiguous estate on the north shore at Setauket, which was the early seat of the Manor. Remember, having political control of the area outlined, just like with the Town of Brookhaven, didn’t mean that he owned the land, although he owned quite a bit (exact amount unknown by me.)

 The original patent for the Manor of St. George was granted by Gov. Fletcher of New York to Colonel William "Tangier" Smith in 1693.  An additional patent was granted in 1697 annexing a large tract of land on the east. Included within the bounds of the patents was a small parcel on the western side of the Carman's River (then known as the Connecticut River) called Yamphank Neck.  However, a deed five years earlier recorded the sale of the Neck to a Town freeholder, Samuel Terrill; and the Town apparently always considered the parcel within the Town governmental jurisdiction.  This area included much of what we now call the Hamlet of South Haven.  For 200 years there were legal disputes over the parcel.  The Neck theoretically remained under the jurisdiction of the Lord of the Manor until Town jurisdiction was formalized in 1789 when the newly independent government annexed the Manor to the Town and the Manorial prerogatives ended. 

On May 14, 1691 Colonel William Smith bought from the native, John Mayhew, much of the land east of the Mastic River (Forge River) to the Southampton line (Eastport) except the two necks, "being Meritces (Moriches) and Mamanok Necks, lying together."  Colonel Smith received a patent from Gov. Fletcher on 17 June 1697 for this land, which was annexed to the original St. Georges Manor.  (A patent for the much smaller tract that remained separate was granted to Richard Smith, son of Richard Smith "Bull" the patentee of Smithtown, NY, on 17 Nov 1697, and came to be known as the Moriches Patent or Moriches Patentship.)  Col. Smith managed to hold but a small portion of his land against the claims of settlers already living within this area, some of whom had deeds from the natives. The total lands in Colonel Smith's manor and associated patents comprised an area approximately 64,000 acres, roughly 40% of the land area of the present Town of Brookhaven. (Deitz)

The original Manor lands did not long survive intact.  On the death of Colonel Smith "Tangier"  in 1705, the Setauket estate was inherited by Colonel Henry Smith, William "Tangier" Smith's eldest surviving son.  The Mastic estate was inherited by Major William Henry Smith, the next eldest surviving son.  This division of property suggests that the Setauket property was considered the more valuable in spite of the vastness of the Mastic lands.  There was a third surviving son, Charles Jeffrey, who may have received some property. The Manor house location in Mastic (today’s Shirley) was probably a whaling station before 1705. According to a brochure sold by the the Manor of St George museum, the manor house construction was completed by 1709, either by Major William Henry Smith or Col Tangier Smith’s Window, Martha or maybe both. Martha died in 1709 and Major Smith became a full time resident after 1709. 

The Manor of St. George remained an independent political jurisdiction until after the Revolutionary War, when, by act of the newly independent New York State legislature in 1789, it was formally annexed to the Town of Brookhaven.  At that time, the Lord's manorial prerogatives ceased, although the Lord's property rights remained. The "Lords" of the manor continued to be prominent in the affairs of the Town.

There is voluminous information in the public domain available about the Manor of St George, the original and long time owners of the eastern half of the Wertheim Refuge. As of this writing, 2014, George Furman, 298 Stealaway Lane, Sporta TN 38583, 931-738-9042, was the sole trustee of the estate and is in charge of several vaults of former Tangier Smith paintings, deeds and possessions.  The Town of Brookhaven has extensive files on the Manor and it is said that Stony Brook University’s Archival Library has many original documents or copies of them.

It seems that Yaphank Neck, (the refuge owns about 350 acres of it), was not owned by the Smith’s, but during the colonial period it was officially under the Manor of St George political jurisdiction (the Town apparently always considered the parcel within the Town governmental jurisdiction). Below is an e-mail from Richard Thomas:

Yaphank Creek and the Yaphank Line formed the western boundary of the Manor of St. George.

 From Colonel William Smith’s First Patent, 1693:  

 William and Mary, by the grace of God, King and Queen of England, Scotland, ffrance, and Ireland, Defenders of the faith, &c.  To all to whom these presents shall come, sendeth greetings:    
Whereas, . . .And whereas, Augustine Graham, our Surveyor Generall for our said Province of New York, &c., hath, pursuant to his warrant aforesaid, surveyed and laid out the several necks and tracts of land and meadow, beach, bay and Islands within the said bay, upon the sayd South side of our Island of Nassau: 

Bounded westward from the main sea or ocean to the westernmost bank of a river called East Connecticut, and so along the bank of the said river to a creek running out of the said river called Yaphank, and so along the southwest bank of the said creek unto its head, the whole creek included, to a marked pyne tree at the head of the said creek, and so in a direct north lyne unil it comes to the bank of Connecticut River aforesaid, to a marked tree on the west syde of said river; and from thence alongst the westernmost bank of said river unto the said river head, the whole river and all the branches thereof included, and from thence along the west syde of Connecticut Hollow to the country road near the middle of the island aforesaid, to a markt tree there, the whole hollow included and so bounded northward by the said country road to another marked tree being distant one from the other ffive miles and a half, and so in a direct south lyne from the easternmost marked tree near the country road aforesaid, to a pyne tree marked with W. S. and three notches, at the head of the main branch of Mastick River, . . .

 So the west boundary of the Manor of St. George just runs up the west bank of the Carman’s River to Yaphank Creek, then along the southwest bank of Yaphank Creek to its head.  [It’s head is at or near the point where the west end of Old South Country Road intersects Montauk Highway.] 

Then due north (magnetically) until the line strikes the Carman’s River (which is where it made the turn when it broke through the moraine when the glaciers retreated). 

The due north line is the Yaphank Line.   To the west of the Yaphank Line is land controlled by the Town of Brookhaven rather than by the Manor, so the line is also the eastern boundary of Lot No. 1 of the Great Division.

 I’ve often wondered why the building of the meeting house at Fire Place in 1740 doesn’t appear in the Town Records.  I think it may be because the meeting house wasn’t in the Town of Brookhaven; it was on the land of the Manor of St. George, so one has to check the Smith records to find out about it. 

 I don’t know whether that’s the explanation, but nearly everything else is recorded in the Town Records, so there must be some reason why it was left out. 

The thing about royal patents is that they didn’t extinguish the title or rights of those who had made purchases from the Indians before the patent was granted.  And the patent itself required first that the land be purchased from the Indians.  So the Town still owned lands at Noccomack meadow (or however it’s spelled). 

There was a big dispute over whether a citizen of the Town of Brookhaven had a valid deed to Yaphank Neck before Col. Smith got his patent.  The Town of Brookhaven claimed that Samuel Terrill was a citizen of the Town when he made his purchase at Yaphank Neck.  The Smith heirs claimed he wasn’t, and in any case, Terrill had failed to have his Indian deed  approved by the royal governor (the approval being a new stipulation contained in a new royal patent to the Town of Brookhaven that had been introduced shortly before Terrill’s purchase). 

There was never any dispute of Col. Smith’s owning the land north of the going over between the Yaphank Line and the river.  That land went to two daughters of Col. Smith, but it was never clear how it went out of their possession so that it could be sold to John Havens of Shelter Island by Mordecai Homan Jr. and Richard Floyd of the Town of Brookhaven and Nicoll Floyd of the “Manor of St. Georges” in 1745.  --Richard Thomas

With the help and advice of New York Gov. Dongan, Col William Smith began to acquire land in southeastern Brookhaven Town in 1688. In May of 1691 a tract of land eastward from the Connecticut (Carman's) River to the Mastic (Forge) River was purchased from the Indian, John Mayhew. 




Nearly a third of 
today’s Brookhaven 
Town was the Manor 
Of St. George. 

1). The Manor of  
St. George, Setauket, 
1693 patent 
 
2.) The Manor of  
St.  George, Mastic 
1693 patent 
 
3.) Longwood (1693) 
 
4.) The Manor of  
St. George, Mastic 
1697 patent 
 
5.) Moriches patent 
(not part of the 
Manor)  
 

(Smith also owned 
the bay bottom and 
Fire Island west to 
Blue Point and east 
to the 
Southampton Town 
Line)  

By Paul Bailey, 1949 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Brookhaven Town is approx 350 square miles. 

Early 19th century map shows the approximate extent of Colonel William Smith’s two patents, analyzed by Paul Bailey, 1949. 
1). The Manor of St George, Setauket, 1693 patent
2.) The Manor of St  George, Mastic 1693 patent
3.) Longwood (1693)
4.) Manor of St George, Mastic 1697 patent
5.) Moriches patent (not part of the Manor). 

Yaphank was still named Millville, so the map is before 1844. 

Fire Island: In his will, William Smith does refer to his South Beach, which was a large and long parcel, being all of Fire Island from "Cupsewogue Gut" eastward to the head of Long Cove westward..  It marked was the westernmost extent of the Town of Southampton.

A court ruled in 1918 that there was a problem with Terrill’s 1688 purchase from the Native Americans. It was a pre-condition that the European settlers first purchase the land from the Indians, but that purchase never conveyed title.  And after October 23, 1684, even an Indian purchase had to be confirmed by the colonial Governor before it was considered valid. Col. William Smith also purchased Yaphank Neck from the Native Americans, but he had his purchase confirmed by the Governor and included in his royal patent from William and Mary. 08 Apr 1692:   Know by men by these presentes that wee Sachem Tobagus and other indians natives and proprietors of a certain Trackt or trackts of Land medowes Beaches &c lying and being and situated on the south side of Long Island in the county of Suffolk adjoining the Town of Brookhaven within the bounds and limits hereafter expresssed . . .  . . . the East bound from the mayne sea along the East syde of Mastick River the whole river included as far as the midle of the Island the West bounds from the Mayne sea alonge the river or brooke northward called Yaphanke and from the head of saide Yaphanke north into the woods to the midle of the Island north bounds beeing the middle of the Island and the South bounds beeing the mayne Sea all ways excepted out of the premises only the land contayned in a patent to Richard Floyd by us [Tobagus] sould beeing Five Hundred Acres as alsoe the two patents granted to Samuel Eburne beeing about Four Hundred Acres as allsoe the meadow next to the bay sold to the Town of Brookhaven and noemore all the reamaning tract or tracts of land medowes as is being expressed . . .



In the early Town records, 
the mill was often referred to 
as “Fire Place Mills.” Some 
maps, such as this one from 
1829, show the whole 
general area being called Fire 
Place. 

Fireplace Bay 

Smith 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The entire area that is today’s refuge was called Fire Place like the surrounding area taking it’s name from the largest neck of land (between Little Neck Run and Fire Place Creek [a.k.a. Beaver Dam Creek]) in this first south shore Town settlement. Once Ben Franklin’s postal system came to be the Tangiers Smiths also used Fire Place as their mailing address.  Again, the interest in the south shore by the Setauket settlement was the meadowland. Immediately after the 1664 the salt marsh was divided in to 49 lots from Carmans River to Ocombomack (Bellport). See: http://brookhavensouthhaven.org/history/RecordsTownOfBrookhaven/Page0010.htm The Tangiers Smith’s Manor of St George came in being 5 years after Wopehege sold Samuel Terrill Yaphank Neck in 1688. Note: The feudal Manor of St George comprised almost the entire eastern portion of today’s Brookhaven Town including all of the river and bay bottom as well as Fire Island from the Islip line to Cupsogue. This was anachronism even in 1693, English parliament outlawed it in England 100 years before, but was legal in the colonies where the land was considered property of the sovereign. See next slide. 



Sam Carman’s Inn, store and home. The mills were a short distance to the east. Sam Carman 
Sr. arrived in 1780, but it would be his son, Sam Carman Jr., and his 12 children that would 
eventually come to own almost all the land in South Haven, including more than a thousand 
acres along the river, with hundreds of those acres in today’s refuge.  

George P. Morse collection 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Sam Carman came from the Hempstead area where he married Theodisi Latting (1753 – 1811) whose family were original settlers in the Hempstead area. 

The Church, mills and Carmans store was the colonial center on the south shore of Brookhaven Town . After the American Revolution many other towns and villages emerged with their own churches and stores, and sometimes a mill. But the old South Haven colonial area remained important until 1910 when the mill shut down and 1960 when the church was moved to Fire Place Neck. 

Various historic literature says that there were stock holders, or share holders in the mill or mills, yet all indications are that Sam Carman (Sr and Jr), , and later son Henry, were the ones who actually owned the mills. It was Henry who sold the mills to the Suffolk Club. Perhaps the share holders were renters and the ones who ran the business of the mills. Don’t know.

It is said that ships could sail up the Carmans River to within a ¼ mile of Carmans Store, about where the RR is today (called Zacks Landing). It is also said that ships took on fresh water from Yaphank Creek. 




(1789-1869) 

(1795-1861) 
Former 
Catherine 
Homan. 

Photos courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 

Jr. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Sam Carman, Jr., (1789-1869), who continued running the businesses, mill owner, farmer and inn keeper, after his father died in 1821. He would come to acquire almost all the land along the west bank of Carmans River from the mainline RR to the Great South Bay.  His wife was the former Catherine Homan and together they had 12 children, several of whom inherited land in South Haven, with Joseph and Henry owning today’s refuge land along Carmans River.

Capt Sam Carman, as he was known because he was a US Coastal inspector for several years, was the second wealthiest resident of the Hamlet in 1850. He was the president of the Town Trustees Board and overseer of the poor. In addition to operating the well know mill on the Carman's river and having extensive land holdings and a large farm he owned the main general store of in the settlement and was also the “banker” for the local community. His inn was a well known inn popular with sportsmen from New York City. The Carman properties became the genesis for the Suffolk Club, a gentleman's sportsman's club. In the late 20th century, the properties were acquired by Suffolk county to become the South Haven county park.




Carman’s or South Haven or Fire Place Mills  

Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
This area is now the westbound lanes of Sunrise Highway.  

I'm pretty sure that all the water-wheels were horizontal wheels.  (When one thinks of a "mill," the image that leaps to mind is that of an overshot vertical water wheel, but that is almost certainly not what existed at the South Haven mills.) The elevation change was too modest for vertical water wheels of the period, and power would have been extracted from the flow rather than the head of water. In the late eighteenth century, I expect the wheels were all horizontal tub wheels.  It was the favorite for grist mills as it required no gearing and was thus easier to build. I do know the types of water wheels at South Haven at the end of the next century, since the Board of Water Supply of the City of New York recorded that information in 1912 in Appendix 14 of Board of Water Supply of the City of New York published Long Island Sources ---  Reports, Resolutions, Authorizations, Surveys and Designs Showing Sources and Manner of Obtaining From Suffolk County, Long Island, an Additional Supply of Water for the City of New York. In Appendix 14 we find (the information would have been from about 1906):“Grist-mill And Sawmill At South Haven—This mill is situated at the outlet of the pond on the Carman's river, just above the South Country road, and belongs with the surrounding land, and the pond above, to the Suffolk club. –Richard Thomas

The sawmill has an under-shot wheel 2 feet by 10 feet rated at 25 H.P. which is said to do about $750 of business annually. The grist-mill has two turbines 24 and 16 H.P. respectively, and one old 12-H.P. tub wheel. This mill does about the same amount of business as the sawmill.” I think the horizontal turbine wheels may be a nineteenth century invention which would have replaced tub wheels, but perhaps they were available earlier. An undershot wheel is the type of vertical wheel that is used for an elevation change of less than about six feet.

Samuel Carman Jr.'s sons testified in 1895 that their father rebuilt the mills in 1844, so that would have been when the turbine wheels were installed.  The tub wheel was probably one of the old wheels from sometime before 1844 that he retained. –Richard Thomas




Circa 1880, lumber mill on left, grist mill on right 

Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
In an 1875 contract with the Suffolk Club, Henry Carman was to remove the old lumber mill. The above picture looks like the new lumber mill that the Suffolk Club built, so I’m dating it circa 1880. 

From Richard Thomas:

Hi Marty, John found a printed copy of the case of the Smiths against The Suffolk Club on e-bay.

It contains as exhibits all those old deeds and leases I found at Riverhead.  (They are not photographs of the hand written deeds, but instead transcriptions. There are a few errors however in how the lawyers deciphered some of the words.) In addition to the transcription of the leases to The Suffolk Club and their purchases from Samuel Carman and Henry W. Carman, there is the 1764 conveyance of the mills by Mordecai Homan to his sons, Jeremiah and Ebenezer, and the Apr 1781 deed of Ebenezer Homan to Samuel Carman, the elder, plus the other old deeds to Samuel Carman by George Beale (also Apr 1781) and by Thomas Ellison (May 1785).

Henry and Joshua both remembered the old mills and said that their father rebuilt the mills in 1844 (building only a Saw mill and a Grist mill --- there had originally also been a fulling mill and a bolting mill).  Henry and Joshua remember only the old saw mill and the old grist mill, so the machinery for the other mills may have gone into disuse by the nineteenth century. The original mills lasted from sometime before 1745 until 1844. …




1815 map – 
all roads lead 
to Carmans, 
the colonial 
center of 
South 
Brookhaven 
Town.   

Damerum Map, 1815 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Colonial Center of South Brookhaven Town was along the banks of Carmans River by the  “goin’ over” along South Country Road (Montauk Highway). The “anchor stores” were the church, the mills and Carmans Inn and store. 

Above is a 1815 Damerum Map



Sam Carman Jr.’s sister,  
Hannah Carman (1785 – 1861) 

“Point Billy”, William 
Tangier Smith (1777 – 
1857) 

Married in 1804 

The intermarriage between the Tangier Smith and Carman families effectively resulted in just 
two families sharing control of thousands of acres and the entire lower six miles of Carmans 
River in the early 19th century.  

Courtesy Suffolk County Historical Society 
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Presentation Notes
Peace between the two families was short lived. After Sam Sr’s death in 1821 there was court action over his will initiated by the Smiths against Sam Jr.  In 1845 they were in court arguing over who owned the river bottom where the Mainline RR wanted to put a little dam under their bridge and Tangier Smiths said ok. Carman had claimed to own the bottom and was represented by Daniel Webster. Carman lost, reason is complicated but I’ve somewhat addressed it in another slide’s notes. Obviously at some point afterward the Suffolk Club came to own river north of the Goin’ Over, which is why the County now owns it. It’s possible/probable that the Suffolk Club, or one of its members (Issac Wright?),  purchased it from the Tangiers. 

For the Manor of St George see: http://brookhavensouthhaven.org/history/manorstgeorge/st_george_manor.htm  There is more about the Manor of St George in one of the above slides with the Manor map. 







Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 
The South Haven church was organized in 1740. 
Located across the street from the mill and 
Carman’s home, the above 1828 building replaced 
the original, which was burned during the American 
Revolution. Above picture taken circa 1940. Courtesy Post Morrow 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
South Haven Church, pictured above circa 1940, was located about 100 yards west of Carmans River along the South Country Road. With the church, mill and stores located here, Yaphank Neck became the colonial center of the south shore of Brookhaven Town.  The church building was moved to the corner of South Country Road Beaver Dam Roads in December 1960 where it still stands today (2014). The above pictured 1828 church’s foundation was made from ballast from a sailing ship(s) that had come up the river.  Although where the church sat is not part of today’s refuge land this important piece of the colonial center played a major part in the lives of those who owned the land that would become Wertheim Refuge.

While the 2-acre church lot near the bank of Carmans River did not become part of today’s refuge land it was adjacent to it and sort of like an “anchor store” for the colonial center.  It was probably the most meaningful “Out Parcel” between the two major landowners along the lower river until the mid 1800s. 



1854 Currier Lithograph of Daniel Webster catching a 14 ½ lb trout in June of 1821 at 
Carman’s mill pond. Daniel Webster, Martin Van Buren, Philip Hone (NYC mayor) 
and others founded the Suffolk Club in the 1820s. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
An original print is at the Old South Haven Church.

I believe this is still the largest known brook trout caught in America.

A variation was provided by Mr. Robert Lawrence (of the Lawrences of Mastic) in the issue of The American Angler that was published a month after the story written by Eugene Virginius Connett III.

The American Angler, Vol. IV, No. 1, May 1919, p. 481"The Big Trout of Carman's River”
THE article in the April number of American Angler about the "Big Trout of Carman's River'' has been read with interest. Some years ago I tried to get at the facts of its capture and was told that the wooden outline of the trout had been lost, after acting for years as a weather vane, on the Brookhaven Church. According to the tale, as I learned it, down at Brookhaven, the big trout was left by the outgoing tide in a shallow spring hole and was not caught by fishing. The account of the rush of the congregation from the church agrees with what I heard, but Daniel Webster, who had frequently come down to Carman's River after trout, was notified of its capture and came down post haste and, purchasing it, returned with it to New York, where it was enjoyed at a banquet. Its weight was said to have been over fourteen pounds. It was spoken of as the "Daniel Webster trout.''Carman's Pond must have been the pond now controlled by the Suffolk Club, and the spring hole was just below the dam on the south side. As a member of the Carman's River Club for many years I was naturally interested in the tradition of the capture of this big trout. My son took a three-pound speckled trout in the river on April 5, 1908, and I took one of two and three-quarter pounds on April 15, 1911. Both of these were taken with worms. I have taken trout up to two pounds in the river on the fly, but early in the season the "worm" was the favorite fly. --Robt. B. Lawrence 

The above “fish story,” has several versions, such as this one by Edna Valentine: 1)  a big fish gets caught (or trapped in a pool)  ,2)  the congregation of the South Haven church "rushes" to see the fish (this would agree with the date of Sunday, June 24, 1821, for its capture),  3)  Daniel Webster came to view the fish and paid Samuel Carman $100. News of the big trout did reach the New York City papers by the Friday following its capture. 




In the early 1800s, prominent men of the time, who would later incorporate in 1858 as the Suffolk Club, 
began gathering at Sam Carman’s Inn, probably with Daniel Webster, Martin Van Buren, Philip Hone and 
others in the 1820s. The above clubhouse was probably built circa 1858 when the club signed a 25-year 
lease with Sam Carman. Only members, all male, were allowed in the clubhouse. Some members bought 
residences or built houses nearby, including on today’s refuge land, for their families. 

Courtesy  John Deitz 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Actually they first incorporated in1858 as the “Suffolk Association of the City and County of New York.” In 1860 they incorporated again  with the name the "Suffolk County Society. "and again in 1866 as the Suffolk Club.

Research by Richard Thomas. Hi Marty, Jones Rogers was the first person who had a lease with Samuel Carman Jr. for trout fishing. I copied that lease today.  He later transferred the lease to Joseph Grafton, and Joseph Grafton transferred the lease to The Suffolk Club.
……….

Lease from Samuel Carman to Jones Rogers and Other Members of the Suffolk Association of the City and County of New York, 01 January 1858 For $300 per year, "Jones Rogers and other members of the Suffolk Association of the City and County of New York" got a 15-year lease from Sam Carman (beginning 01 January 1858) with: The following rights and privileges Viz.  The exclusive right of the said party of the first part to the trout fishing in the pond and Stream at South Haven town aforesaid from the Mill dam Northerly to the rail road. [That is, the party of the second part, the Suffolk Association, got the exclusive right of the party of the first part, Samuel Carman, to the trout fishing.]  Also as long as the said parties of the second part lease or leases And have the exclusive right of the said pond and stream for trout fishing and the right of any preserving and prosecuting any person or persons taking or claiming the said Trout in the pond or stream.  They also have the privilege of trout fishing in any waters south of the Mill dam belonging to the said party of the first part.  Also the privilege of turning out increasing preserving hunting and Shooting game without doing unnessary [sic.] damage to the said property On all lands now in possession of the said party of the first part on the same while in the possession of his heirs executors or administrators during the period of the said lease or leases.  It being understood that should the said party of the first part his heirs executors or administrators sell any of the above premises except the Pond and Stream the above privilege ceases on the same conveyed.The lease wasn't recorded until eight and a half years later.  Samuel Carman appeared before David T. Hawkins, Justice of the Peace of Suffolk County on 10 May 1866 and stated that he did indeed sign the lease, then it was recorded on 01 Jun 1866. Jones Rogers had transferred the lease "for and during the residual of the term thereby granted" to Joseph Grafton of the City of New York (for one dollar) on 29 April 1864. Joseph Grafton, almost two years later, also for one dollar, transferred the lease to "The Suffolk Club" its successors and assigns on the 19 Apr 1866. The Suffolk Club Incorporated Twice, 11 Apr 1860, as "Suffolk County Society," and 27 Mar 1866, as "The Suffolk Club" The Suffolk Club had been incorporated by a special act of the New York State Legislature on 11 April 1860 with the name the "Suffolk County Society."  Jones Rogers and Isaac M. Right were two of the five original incorporators.  It was incorporated "for a period not exceeding fifty years." There were five directors listed in the Act. In 1865, the New York State legislature passed a new law that made it possible for recreational societies and clubs to incorporate more easily, so it was no longer necessary to have a special act passed by the legislature for each incorporation or renewal of incorporation. 

"The Suffolk Club," although already incorporated elected to re-incorporate under the 1865 Act and to incorporate under a different name, "The Suffolk Club." It did so on 27 Mar 1866.  This second incorporation is recorded in the Liber "B" of the Certificates of Incorporation of Suffolk County, which I copied on Friday, 01 Jul 2011. See attached. The incorporation reveals some new names:     Peter H. Vandervoort    Victor Delannay (or Delaunay), and    J. Gurley Grafton  "The Suffolk Club" is Conveyed Property, 19 Apr 1866 On the same day Joseph Grafton conveyed the lease to "The Suffolk Club," he also conveyed a large property he owned to "The Suffolk Club."  [The size isn't stated, but there is enough information in the deed to plot the parcel and compute the acreage.] The Suffolk Club paid him $16,000 for the property.  I expect the property, or parts of it, had been in the hands of members of The Suffolk Club for a long period, since Isaac M. Wright had already erected a house upon it.  The deed below indicates that one acre of the land within the boundary described, on which Isaac M. Wright had erected his house, was not being conveyed to The Suffolk Club by Joseph Grafton. Isaac Wright may have already owned his one acre. That is, it may have been entirely surrounded by the Grafton property but not a part of it, and the property was excluded for that reason.  Or Joseph and Elizabeth Grafton may have conveyed the one acre to Isaac Wright later. I can check that at Riverhead.Liber 138  Page 427Joseph Grafton and Elizabeth (Remsen) Grafton, his wife, to "The Suffolk Club"19 Apr 1866$16,000

The above is the site of the original Suffolk Club, said to have been originally organized about 1827 by Daniel Webster, Martin Van Buren & others. A 2nd or follow-on Suffolk Club was was said to have been organized by August Belmont and others in 1858. [However, recent research suggests that Belmont may not have been an organizer or a formal member, but there is documentation that he visit the preserve as a guest. The Suffolk Club was very exclusive, and limited its membership to fifteen persons. Each member had their own rooms in the club house, furnished to their taste. The "cellar" was said to have been very fine, and the kitchen superb. Women and children were not allowed in the club house, although some members built residences nearby for their families.] This Club consisted of 1500 acres, a large club house, and Carman's Mill. [See "other documents" link above for more in the



Overlay by Richard Thomas 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Interesting aside: .. In 1846 Jeptha Avery Wilkenson purchased a farmstead in South Haven, Long Island, NY, from Daniel Terry. This farm remained with the Wilkinson family heirs until 1943 & 1944 when it was sold Maurice Wertheim, eventually to become part of the Wertheim National Wildlife Refuge. Jeptha Wilkinson is credited with the invention of the revolver, the reed machine (important to weaving), and the first cylindrical printing press.



From the George 
Morse collection 
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1895 court case involving ownership of the river bottom. Here’s what Richard Thomas researched:

MVL - Carman lost, not sure why. Obviously at some point afterward H. Carman was able to sell the river bottom to the Suffolk Club, which is why the County now owns it. It’s also possible that the Suffolk Club, or one of its members (Isaac Wright?),  purchased it from the Tangiers.  

RT -  Here’s why he lost.  And no, Henry Carman was never able to sell the river bottom to the Suffolk Club, and also, that isn’t why the County now owns it.                 

When a person purchases land along one side of a river, they usually acquire ownership of the river and the land beneath the river only to the middle of the stream --- unless it’s a "navigable river," in which case the public retains both title and right of use of the entire river.                 

The Suffolk Club claimed that Carman had owned the entire width of the river from the going over up to Yaphank, even though they acknowledged that he had never owned the land on the east side of the river.  The Smiths had plenty of documents showing that they owned the land there, and had always owned it since Col. Smith got his royal patent from William and Mary. So, normally, Carman could only have ever owned to the middle of the stream, and to do merely that the Suffolk Club still had to show that Carman had had good title to his property west of the river, as the Smiths had owned that too.                 

The Smiths showed that they had owned the entire Carmans River bottom from where the Yaphank Line crosses the Carmans River at Yaphank, all the way down to the bay, and that they had lost control of half the river's width only for the northerly portion when Jeanne and Glorianna sold the property they had inherited from their father, which was the land north of the head of Yaphank Creek between the Yaphank Line and the river. (The Manor of St. George clearly included all of Yaphank neck then north from the head of Yaphank Creek to the Carmans River.  That's why the Great Division of lots started at the Yaphank Line and not at the river or immediately west of the mills.)                 

So to show ownership of the whole width of the river north of the going over, the Suffolk Club would have had to show that some Smith had sold the entire river bottom to someone who eventually conveyed it to Samuel Carman Sr., which Henry then inherited from Samuel Carman Jr., and sold to the Suffolk Club, but they couldn't.                 

The best they could do was show Carman had a sufficiently good title to the land on the west side of the river and that he also owned use of the flow of the river for operating the mills, and he owned the dam, although they tried to claim under adverse possession because Samuel Carman Jr. had kept some geese on an island in the middle of the river, but the court didn't buy it.  (The Smiths never contested that Carman owned the entire dam and also had a right to repair the dam with soil and sand at the eastern end, because it is a right the Smiths had conveyed to those who had owned the mills even before Samuel Carman Sr. purchased it.)                 

The Smiths still owned the land east of the river in 1895, so the court decided that they owned to the middle of the river there, just as would normally be the case. The Carmans River south of the Going Over In 1918, a court ruled that Samuel Terrell had never had good title to Yaphank Neck, even though he had had possession (see discussion above regarding purchases from the natives), so he could never have conveyed good title to anyone else.  So the Smiths owned the whole width of the river below the going over, as they had never sold the land on the west side of the river below the going over to anyone.  There was evidence that the Smiths had long claimed to own the whole width of the river to the south of the Going Over and had taken action against those who thought otherwise.  So no one else could own the river, or even half of it, through adverse possession.  As the Smiths had taken no action against those who occupied the neck itself however, and there was some very murky court business in the 1730s regarding the Town and the Smiths, the court in 1918 did decide that although the Smiths might still have title to the land of Yaphank Neck, they no longer had possession.                 

Henry Carman wasn't able to sell more than half the width of the river north of the going over to the Suffolk Club as he never owned more than half, which is why the Suffolk Club lost their case in 1895. Henry Carman also wasn't able to sell the any of the river at all to the Brooklyn Water Syndicate below the going over, as the Smiths had always owned it from the time of the royal patent of 1693, which is why they lost their case to the Smiths in 1918. As the county now owns land on both sides of the river, east to River Road and from Montauk Highway to the main line of the LIRR, they own the full width of the river.  The own the east half because they own the property on the east bank of the river, and they own the west half because the county owns the property on the west bank of the river.


 (Note to myself. Possession is the key word here. Glorianna Smith and her sister inherited Yaphank Neck from their father, the first (1891) William Tangier Smith of the manor. They sold the land circa 1735 (there was a court case by their brother for an eviction from someone living on Yaphank Neck in 1735). The deed of this sale has never been found. However, the land has been subdivided and resold multiple times (including to the Brooklyn Water Company) because even though no deed was found in law there is “possession,” which allows life to go on.  But the “possessor” of the West side of Yaphank Neck south of the going over did not own any rights to the river bottom. It is because if this kind of archaic and questionable ownership that when Suffolk County purchased Southaven Park they decided not to go through the normal process of title search, deed verification, etc and just condemned the land. By condemning the land they avoided all the legal hassles. 









Survey 1900  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Supplying water from the Carmans River to Brooklyn was stopped by the double wammy of the Smith’s lawsuit proving that Bartlett didn’t own the river bottom and NYS Senator Carll Burr Smith’s Water Act legislation preventing taking water from Suffolk County. 

E-mail from Dr. Richard Thomas: Hi Marty, I don't know why the reporter wrote "ponds and streams."  Maybe the standard contract of the Brooklyn Water Syndicate used those terms.  In any case, at the time the contract was formalized into a deed, there wasn't any mention of ponds:   

 ALL that tract or parcel of land, situate, at South Haven in the Town of Brookhaven, County of Suffolk, and State of New York, bounded and described as follows, to wit:     Beginning at a point on the south side of of the South Country Road and on the west side of Carman's River or Connecticut River, and running thence westerly  by the southerly side of the South Country Road two hundred (200) feet; then south 5° 45' east by other land of Henry W. Carman sixteen hundred twenty-five (1625) feet to land of the Long Island Railroad Company; thence westerly by land of said Railroad Company to the east line of premises conveyed to the said Henry W. Carman by Robert A. Carman and wife by deed dated November 16th, 1885; and running thence northerly by the east line of the premises conveyed to said Henry W. Carman by Robert A. Carman to the South Country Road; thence westerly by the South Country Road to land of Sylvester Homan; thence Southerly by land last mentioned land to land of Mrs. Joseph Grafton to the southwest corner of the Slim lot (so called); thence easterly by the southerly line of said Slim lot to the southeast corner of said lot; thence southerly by land of Mrs. Joseph Grafton to said Grafton's meadow; thence in an easterly direction by said meadow and meadows of Charles Carman to Carman's River; then easterly and northerly following the meanderings of said Carman's River to the point and place of beginning.  Containing two hundred (200) acres, be the same more or less.     

And also all the right title and interest of said Henry W. Carman of, in and to the lands and lands under water in Carman's River, in front of the premises above described to the center thereof and also all the right, title and interest of the said Henry W. Carman of, in and to the South Country Road in front of said premises to the center thereof.    [Etc., etc.]

There would, of course, been lands that were bought up by the Brooklyn Syndicate that included ponds as well as streams. The charter for the City of New York allowed the city to condemn land outside the city limits if the land was needed for municipal purposes.  I haven't verified it, but I would guess that the Brooklyn charter gave that city the same powers. The Brooklyn Waterworks began acquiring supply ponds about 1862, and by 1889, these supply ponds were as far away as Rockville Center. Kings County (Brooklyn) became part of the City of New York in 1898, as did a part of Queens County.  The Towns of the eastern part of Queens County that were not made a part of the city were then set off as a new county, Nassau, in 1899. No mention is made of the Brooklyn Water Syndicate or of John P. Cranford, who headed it, in the deed.  The person of the second part was John J. Bartlett, of Greenport, who was a lawyer and a front man for the syndicate.

MUNICIPAL ENGINEERING, VOLUME XIV.—JANUARY—JUNE, 1898, No. 1, January, p. 58. Waterworks Brooklyn, N. Y.—John P. Cranford has made a proposition to this city, in behalf of the Suffolk county syndicate, in which he offers to increase the city's water supply by about 50,000,000 gallons. It will be two years, however, before he can fulfill the contract. The syndicate is a company of capitalists, who have secured extensive water rights between Patchogue and Eastport, the latter place being about seventy-five miles distant from Brooklyn.The 200 acres purchased by Bartlett was conveyed by him to the"Reliance Development Company" in December 1903.  Bartlett was probably a principal in that company. John J. Bartlett was appointed the Trustee in the Bankruptcy of the Reliance Development Corporation by the U. S. District Court on 27 Mar 1916. He sold the 200 acres to Jesse W. Johnson, who resided at the Sherman Square Hotel, Manhattan, on 31 Oct 1916.  (The land may then have fallen into the hands of Walter Cranford and wife -- an heir of John P. Cranford, I presume.  In any case, a Walter Cranford sells the same land in South Haven to James Spevlin of Brooklyn on 18 Nov 1920.  Perhaps John P. Cranford, and subsequently, his heirs, also had an interest in the assets of the Reliance Development Company.)

 The land next went to Eversley Childs and Alfred W. Erickson (Eversley Childs, the President of Bon Ami and A. W. Erickson, head of the advertising company that did the Bon Ami ad campaigns). Childs and Erickson transferred the land to their new corporation, the Carman River Corporation in July 1925. They also owned the land south of the Wellingtons, on the west bank from the mouth of the river north to Philips Dock, and many other properties along the river on the east side as well. They kept the land for the next thirteen years.  I'm not sure whether they actually used it or not.  It is surprising there isn't more information about the period when Childs and Erickson owned so much of the land along the Carmans River south of the "going over," (the period from 1924 to 1938). I wonder if they ever used it for fishing or hunting. In 1917, Eversley Childs was the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Long Island Lighting Company, which had been incorporated on the last day of 1910.    CHILDS, Eversely, manufacturer and philanthropist, was born in Brooklyn, N.Y., Feb. 5, 1867, son of William Henry Harrison and Maria (Eversley) Childs.  His father was the founder and president of the Mica Roofing Co.  Eversley Childs was educated at Adelphi academy and the Polytechnic Institute in Brooklyn.  After a brief employment with the United States Twine and Net Co., he joined his father in the Mica Roofing Co., and was successively manager . . .American Coal Products Co.  

In 1916 the name was changed to Barrett Co.  Eversley Childs was chairman of the board of the Barrett Co. from 1916 to 1925 but in 1922 sold his interested to the Allied Chemical and Dye Corp., and thereafter his principal business interest has been the Bon Ami Co.  Since 1919 Eversley Childs has been president of the company. . . .In the late 1930s, the Childs family was the subject of an investigation on the "concentration of economic power" by the "Temporary National Economic Committee" because of the Childs family was one of only three families which together controlled a majority of the stock of the Long Island Lighting Company. 

 From Richard - The $20,000 was for the 200 acres along the Carmans River south of the highway plus all the rights Henry W. Carman had to the river itself --- which led to the Smith's filing their suit the following November. When the Smith case was finally concluded, it was discovered that the rights Henry Carman had to that part of the river were "none at all," but as the deed only said he was selling all the rights he had to the river and the lands beneath the river, he still got to keep the $20,000, since he had indeed sold all of his rights to the river to the water syndicate --- those rights just turned out to be zero.

Bartlett sold his 200 acres of Little Neck in 1916 but the efforts of the Brooklyn water company to tap into Suffolk County’s water supply continued through the 1930s.

The acquisition of water for Brooklyn from Suffolk County was stopped by the Carll Smith Burr Jr.'s Water Act.  He was a member of the NYS Assembly in 1896-1898.  The Burr Water Act prevented any municipality from taking water from "any river, stream, or pond" in Suffolk County.  The Brooklyn water crisis was partly responsible for Brooklyn agreeing to become a part of New York City.  The new charter for New York City allowed the city to condemn watersheds outside the city, but opponents got an addition to that part of the Charter that stated that nothing in that section was to affect the application of the Burr Act. In 1906, the Merchants’ Association of New York was still advocating the repeal of the Burr law, and if that wasn’t possible to take the issue to court to test whether the Burr law was constitutional.  As taking water from rivers, streams, and ponds was no longer possible, the next plan was to use a large number of wells in Suffolk County to provide the water.  The law said nothing about waters under the earth. See WaterNYC_1896Plan_1912, which describes how the 1912 plan is far superior to the plan of 1896. Their engineers calculated that if they put their wells among the undeveloped lands of scrub oak and pine a few miles north of the populated south shore, then the water table in villages such as Babylon and Patchogue would at most drop only four or five feet in dry weather, which shouldn't be too much of an inconvenience for Suffolk residents.





The Montauk Branch of the South Side Railroad, today’s 
LIRR, cut through the refuge in 1881.  

Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 

This bridge was built in 1911 to replace the original “frame” (wood) bridge built in 1881.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
South Side Signal (Babylon) 09 Apr 1881"The right of way has been secured and the survey completed for the extension of the Montauk Railroad from Patchogue to Moriches.  The ties and iron for building the road are being prepared, and the work is to begin soon. 

22 Jul 1881The road bed for the extension of the Montauk Railroad from Patchogue to Moriches is completed, the rails are laid, and the construction trains ar running over the track.  In the course of a few days trains on the Montauk Road will run through to Sag Harbor.

In September 1888, the "railroad company" was "filling in the high bridge over the Connecticut river at Southaven.  The bridge is 600 feet long and is the longest high bridge upon the island.”







Tangier 
Development 
Corp president 
Fredrick J. 
Quinby, 1911 

Courtesy Ken Spooner 

In 1910, the Tangier Development 
Corporation purchased several thousand 
acres along the east side of Carmans 
River from the Tangier Smiths. 



In 1910, The Tangier 
Development 
Corporation purchased 
thousands of acres 
from the Tangier Smith 
family, essentially all 
the land along the east 
side of the river south 
from South Country 
Road to the manor 
house. By the 1920s, 
the corporation went 
bankrupt and the land 
reverted back to the 
mortgage holders 
(including Smiths) or 
was sold at tax auction.  

Courtesy Ken Spooner 
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While property taxes have been around for a while they really skyrocketed in Brookhaven Town in 1897 (It’s population now at 4,000). See Brooklyn Eagle; Aug 12, 1897 article. They increased 5 or 6 fold for many of the large landholders such as the Smiths Robert Smith) who were land rich and cash poor. The Smith’s had a survey done on their land in 1900 and started shopping it around. In 1910 The Tangier Corporation bought approximately 7,000 acres of the Smith’s land .
   
Suffolk County News (Sayville), 11 Jul 1913, p. 6.   The affairs of the big Tangier development near Smiths Point, which have been more less involved for some time, have at last gotten into the hand of the sheriff, who will sell all the property interests of the Tangier Manors Corporation, the Tangier Development Company and George C. Dodge at auction at Riverhead on Monday, August 18, on an execution obtained for Augustus Floyd, the plaintiff. (repeated several times until 1919)

(This is weird:) Suffolk County News (Sayville), 13 Jun 1919, p. 2.   The Tangiers Manors Corporation bought in about 7,000 acres of its own land at a foreclosure sale held in front of the Patchogue post office last week.  The foreclosure was brought by the Virginia Trust Company and James Mullen of Richmond, Va.  The actions was in the nature of a re-organization of the concern of about $600,000 being the amount of money involved.  Ralph J. Hawkina, attorney for Major Fred J. Quinby, one of the prime movers in the Tangier venture, makes the prediction that following this re-organization of the corporation , the improvement of the property will be pushed rapidly.  He said that about $1,000,000 will be spent in beautifying and developing it within the next year.

A 16 May 1924 article says that the group that purchased the Tangiers property at the foreclosure sale in 1919 was actually the Hawtonhurst Corporation. In May 1924, a foreclosure on 2,000 acres of land was instituted, but it was a "friendly suit" "to clear up the title to the property, so that the development can be carried on on an extensive scale."  See attached. The most interesting thing about the article is that the Smiths (William E. T. Smith and his sisters Miss Eugenie and Miss Martha) were the ones who foreclosed.  They still held mortgages.  The sale was held at the old Casino at Smith's Point, and it was expected that the Hawtonhurst Corporation would place the winning bid. Edward R. Tolfree was made one of the two trustees of the failed Hawtonhurst Corporation. Though the years there were many news accounts following up, eg., Suffolk County News (Sayville), 15 Apr 1927, p. 9. )





Note Advertisement in Times Square 

Fortunately for Carmans River, the 1910-16 Tangiers Development 
Company failed, and by 1917, the ~7,000 acres had mostly reverted 
back to the Tangier Smith family. 

Courtesy Ken Spooner 



1912 

Photo Jessie Wells Post, July 1912. Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation. 



250 years after 
Colonel William 
Tangier Smith 
purchased more 
than 100 square 
miles of 
Brookhaven Town 
and was granted a 
feudal patent, the 
Tangier Smith land 
along Carmans 
River on the Mastic 
peninsula remained 
largely 
undeveloped. 

Arial photo courtesy Stony 
Brook University 
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Presentation Notes
The Carmans River Club formed in 1895 and rented the lower Carmans River from the Tangier Smiths  at various times until at least 1920. The following is an e-mail from Dr. Richard Thomas detailing his research on the club and Carmans River. 

From: Richard Thomas <richardathomas@optonline.net>

The incorporation of the Carman's River Club in Suffolk County preceded Maurice Wertheim's interest in the area by several decades. 
The Carman's River Club was incorporated in about February 1895, according to an article in The Port Jefferson Echo of February 16, 1895, page 2.

The Carman's River Club and the Suffolk Club had a contemporaneous existence, both were made up of men of prominence and wealth.  The Suffolk Club was, of course, much much older and the Carman's River Club continued to exist for some years after the Suffolk Club had gone extinct.  The Carman's River Club seems to have occupied the river from its mouth up to where the Suffolk Club properties were situated.

According to the articles of incorporation of the Carman's River Club, one of its purposes was to "purchase, hire and lease lands for shooting, fishing and hunting purposes.”

 The five original trustees of the newly formed corporation were:     Arlington H. Carman of Patchogue    Henry C. Wilson    Peter B. Acker    Joseph P. Knapp, and    Alfred Wagstaff.

The "principal office and place of business of the corporation" was to be Brookhaven, NY, and the term of incorporation, 50 years.

On September 5, 1902, the Suffolk County News of Sayville noted, on page 1,    The Carman's River Club, composed of prominent men of Greater New York who spent their time at the club principally in catching the fine trout for which Carman's River is noted, have given notice of their intention to lay out their club grounds into a park for the purpose of propagating and protecting the fish, birds and game, and warning is given the public not to trespass thereon.  Colonel Alfred Wagstaff is president, William J. Meyers secretary of the club.

… In this letter, published in the January-February 1920 issue, Vol. IV, Nos. 9-10, p. 481, he also writes:

 Carman's Pond must have been the pond now controlled by the Suffolk Club, and the spring hole was just below the dam on the south side.

So we know the Suffolk Club was still functioning in 1919.

=========
The Carman River Corporation was the invention of Eversley Childs and A. W. Erickson and created on 10 Oct 1924.  Proceedings were taken to dissolve the corporation, I think on 14 Dec 1930, but then its corporate existence* was revived and extended in 1933. 
* As The Hawtonhurst Corporation . One director, Ed Tolfree, would personally come to own about 2,000 acres of the former Tangier land.  









The Carmans River Corporation, 
founded in 1924 by Eversley 
Childs and Alfred Erickson.  

On May 27, 1938, Maurice 
Wertheim bought his first 14 
parcels along the banks of the 
Carmans River from the Carman 
River Corporation, Eversley 
Childs and Alfred Erickson.  

Photo courtesy Richard Thomas 
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The Carman River Corporation was a creation of Eversley Childs and Alfred W. Erickson. Despite their similar-sounding names, the Carmans River Club (Inc.) and the Carman River Corporation were entirely unrelated to each other. The Carman River Corporation was the invention of Eversley Childs and A. W. Erickson and created on 10 Oct 1924. Erickson died in 1936, which may be the reason Childs decided to sell to Wertheim. 

 That property along the west bank of the river south of Phillips Dock, the one acquired by the house mover, James I. Davis of Blue Point in 1917, is sold to two millionaires.  One is an industrialist (Childs) and the other is one of the most prominent individuals in the history of advertising (Erickson). It is they who create the Carman River Corporation.  The original address of the corporation is given as Setauket, NY, which is the location of the summer home of the industrialist.  Later the address is 17 Battery St., New York, which is the location of his business.  The corporation must have originally been incorporated for a short lifetime, since in 1933, a bill was presented in the New York State legislature "to revive and extend the corporate existence of the Carman River Corporation and to annul all proceedings taken for the dissolution thereof.” 

The Carman River Corporation seems to have been created to hold the properties Childs and Erickson had purchased along both sides of the Carmans River and the land under the river plus the land under part of the Great South Bay. 
Eversley Childs contributed to the Permanent Wild Life Protection Fund and, in 1912, he was a sustaining member of the Audubon Society.  Eversley and his uncle were members and supporters of the New York Zoological Society in 1906.  In 1916, Eversley was a Life Member of the American Museum of Natural History, and in 1918, both were Life Members of the Brooklyn Institute of Arts and Sciences.

In 1929, Eversley Childs was the president of the Wyandanch Club, Smithtown, and was present at its dinner on the opening day of the hunting season.  A. W. Erickson was also a member.  (The property of the Wyandanch Club is now the Caleb Smith State Park. The question then arises, as Childs and Erickson were already members of a club or clubs providing ample opportunities for shooting, fishing, and hunting why would they go to the trouble and expense of buying property for that purpose themselves, and even go so far as to form a corporation?

Proceedings were taken to dissolve the corporation, I think on 14 Dec 1930, but then its corporate existence was revived and extended in 1933. “I (Richard Thomas) just learned today that in August 1938, Maurice Wertheim was president of the revived corporation.”  

It is true that he acquired the land "piecemeal," but many of the pieces had already been assembled for him by the Carman River Corporation.

The address for the Carman River Corporation on the earliest deed appears as Setauket, NY, but in a later deed appears as 17 Battery Place.  17 Battery Place was also the address of the Barrett Company and the Bon Ami Company.

=====
Hi Marty,
Wertheim was helped quite a bit by the Carman River Corporation. Maurice Wertheim's first deed was with the Carman River Corporation (04 June1938, Liber 1986, page 441).

There must be some connection between either Eversley Childs or Alfred Erickson and Maurice Wertheim.  Why would Maurice Wertheim, who lived in Cos Cobb, CT, have developed an interest in 1938 in preserving land around a river in eastern Long Island?

But then, why did Eversley Childs and Alfred W. Erickson develop an interest in 1924?  Childs did have an estate at Old Field/Setauket, but that still seems fairly distant. ..Anyway, the Carman River Corp. deed provided Wertheim with 14 separate parcels along the banks of the Carmans River (and one of those "parcels" was actually four separate pieces). This was by far Maurice Wertheim's most expensive acquisition, $34,000. Maybe Childs had less interest in the property after A. W. Erickson died in November 1936.  Erickson had been a member of three hunting and fishing clubs.

There are thirteen more "deeds" for Maurice Wertheim, but one is not actually a deed (it's an agreement with Eugenie A. T. Smith) and another is aconfirmatory deed.These other deeds are generally one or two parcel deeds; most being single parcel deeds for 4 acres, 6 acres, or 8 acres.  These "small" land conveyances were for the little pieces into which "Narcomac Meadows" had been cut. These little pieces often went to heirs who had no interest in them or had forgotten about them -- two of the Wertheim purchases at Narcomac Meadows where from tax sales.

The deed for the parcels that Maurice Wertheim conveyed to the USA in 1947 contains a 23-page list of separate parcels, but a very large number of those parcels had already been "assembled."  About 12 pages of parcels had already been acquired and were held by a single entity, the Carman River Corporation.
======
From: Richard Thomas <richardathomas@optonline.net>
Date: January 29, 2014 11:52:38 PM EST
A publication entitled Game Breeder and Sportsman, Vol. 44, 1940, p. 66, in an article entitled "Carman’s River Preserve" says:    I first learned of the Carman's River Preserve when Maurice Wertheim, a prominent New York stockbroker, and president of the Carman's River Corporation asked me to look over his property with a view to determining its possibilities for pheasant and quail shooting, and if it proved feasible to outline a program of development.   I visited the property in August, 1938.  At that time it consisted of . . .

RT:  I had never read before that Maurice Wertheim was president of the Carman River Corporation, which raises the question of why was a deed executed to convey all the property of the Carman River Corporation to Maurice Wertheim on 03 Jun 1938 when the same thing could have been accomplished by just selling all of the shares of the corporation to Maurice Wertheim?  (Which may also have been done, but why do both? Once the properties had been conveyed from the Carman River Corporation to Maurice Wertheim personally, it would seem to me to be just a shell corporation with no assets.)  The author may not be entirely reliable, as he doesn’t know the difference between Shinnecock Bay and the Great South Bay.










Photo courtesy Jen Puleston Clement 

In 1938, banker Maurice Wertheim purchased about 1,000-acres straddling the lower 
Carmans River, from the Carmans River Corporation, for his personal game preserve (initially 
for pheasant and quail shooting). He would add more land to it in the following years. 

Courtesy John Deitz 
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Maurice Wertheim c.1922
Maurice Wertheim (born New York City 1886, died Cos Cob, Connecticut, May 27, 1950) was an American investment banker, chess player, chess patron, environmentalist, and philanthropist. He financed much of the activity in American chess during the 1940s. Wertheim founded Wertheim & Co. in 1927.
[edit]
Biography
Maurice Wertheim graduated from Harvard University in 1906. He inherited nearly half a million dollars from his father, who had been successful with the United Cigar Manufacturers Company. He entered the investment banking field in 1915 in New York, and founded his own firm Maurice Wertheim and Company in 1927, developing a very successful business in mergers and acquisitions, and becoming wealthy in the process. During World War II, he served as a dollar-a-year man on the War Production Board in the administration of President Franklin D. Roosevelt.[1]
Wertheim was a reasonably strong amateur chess player, who enjoyed the game, and put a lot of effort into his correspondence chess play.[2] He was also interested in the theatre, fishing, nature conservancy, and art. He donated 1,700 acres (8.1 km2) on eastern Long Island to the United States government in 1947; this became the Wertheim National Wildlife Refuge. He arranged for the donation of his collection of French Impressionist paintings to the Fogg Art Museum at Harvard University upon his death.[3]

Wertheim conceived the idea for the 1946 chess match between the United States and the Soviet Union in Moscow, convinced the U.S. State Department that it would make a difference in thawing the Cold War, and financed it, paying for the trans-Atlantic travel and hospitality upon arrival.[5]
After his death from a heart attack in 1950, a memorial Maurice Wertheim chess tournament was organized in 1951 in New York in his memory; it was won by Samuel Reshevsky.
Wertheim was the father of American historian Barbara W. Tuchman.
=======
In 1938, banker Maurice Wertheim purchased ~750 acres straddling the lower Carmans River for his personal game preserve. His first idea after purchasing the property seems to have been to develop the property for pheasant and quail shooting (see Game Breeder and Sportsman, Vol. 44, 1940, p. 66).   It required him to modify the vegetation of the property substantially. In 1947 he deeded this land plus post-1938 acquisitions to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to become a wildlife Refuge upon his and his wife’s death. Some 600 additional acres were added to the Refuge after DOI took control. 

While Maurice Wertheim should justifiably be credited with the donation of his hunting lodge and estate to form the core of the Wertheim National Wildlife Refuge, he was greatly assisted by the earlier purchases of two men, Eversley Childs and Alfred W. Erickson and their Carman River Corporation for the accumulation of property along the lower reach of the Carman's River, which preserved much of it from development pressures. This little know piece of the Refuge story is documented in this memorandum by Dr. Richard A. Thomas, a researcher and contributing member of the Fire Place History Club.





Maurice Wertheim’s Stealaway 



Maurice Wertheim, 
center, with 
hunting guide Capt. 
Bill Murdock, right, 
near his hunting 
lodge, Stealaway, 
(former refuge HQ), 
in 1939.   

Courtesy John E. Barry 



In August of 1914, 
Maurice Wertheim and his 
family were on a visit to 
his father-in-law 
ambassador Henry 
Morgenthau in Turkey and 
witnessed the first WWI 
naval shots fired between 
British and German 
warships. 
 
From Turkey, Ambassador 
Morgenthau dispatched 
Maurice Wertheim aboard 
the battle cruiser USS 
North Carolina to 
Palestine, to deliver relief 
funds raised privately in 
the US. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
For more on Wertheim’s Palestine mission, see: http://brookhavensouthhaven.org/history/wertheim/MauriceWertheimPalestine.htm

In August of 1914 Maurice Wertheim and his family were on a visit to his father-in-law ambassador Henry Morgenthau in Turkey and witnessed the first WWI naval shots fired between the between the British light cruiser Gloucester and the German warships Goeben and Breslau.

At the outbreak of the war, the American Jewish Committee had raised $50,000 for the relief of the distressed people of the Holy Land. Ambassador Morgenthau arranged with the Standard Oil Company to have the initial gold payment from the United States released through Standard's representative in Constantinople. From there, it was transported aboard a battle cruiser, the USS North Carolina with his son-in-law Maurice Wertheim serving as his personal emissary. The gold itself, which Wertheim carried in a suitcase, caused great excitement. It was immediately deposited in the Anglo Palestine Company Building. Barbara Tuchman recalled her father telling the story of locking himself in a room with the gold and refusing to come out until the loudly disputing  parties reached an agreement. Leaders were chosen and “Everything had been "done with lightning speed, in the American way.”
================================

The below excerpt is from a book by Henry Morgenthau III, Mostly Morgenthaus:  A Family History (chapter 14, pages 152-160), which includes a description of Maurice Wertheim's involvement during this period.:

Early in 1914 Turkish officials began to interfere with communications from the interior. Morgenthau meanwhile was receiving alarming news about Palestine from Grand Rabbi Nahoum in Constantinople and the organized Jewish community in New York. Furthermore, the Turks, while planning their "final solution" for the Armenians, seemed to have a similar fate in mind for the Jews and other minorities under their control.
When the war began, nearly everyone imagined it would end  quickly, probably with a settlement negotiated by the United States. This expectation hardly mitigated fears among Ottoman Christians and Jews that once they were cut off from the benevolent concern of the Europeans the Turks would destroy them. For the Jewish community in Palestine, heavily dependent on outside aid, the pros­pect of economic strangulation was especially frightening. No one was more disturbed than Ambassador Morgenthau, who had gained a thorough understanding of the precarious situation during his visit to the Holy Land.
On August 28, acting quickly and decisively, Morgenthau ca­bled Jacob Schiff in New York for help through official State Department channels:
PALESTINE JEWS FACING TERRIBLE CRISIS. BELLIGERENT COUNTRIES STOPPING THEIR ASSISTANCE. SERIOUS DESTRUCTION THREATENS THRIVING COLONIES. FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS NEEDED BY RESPONSIBLE COMMITTEE.
Schiff passed the word to Louis Marshall, president of the American Jewish Committee, "suggesting" a meeting of the committee "at once."
The committee convened on August 30. Early on September 2, Schiff, on his own initiative, cabled Morgenthau "accepting your suggestion, and authorizing you to go ahead in carrying it out." Later that same day he notified Morgenthau: "We had a meeting of the executive committee of the American Jewish Committee, which approved of what I had done, contributing from their own funds $25,000, while I undertook to add $12,500 and it is expected that the American Federation of Zionists will furnish the remaining $12,500, but be that as it may, the entire $50,000 will be at your disposal as soon as we hear from you to whom to remit."
Ambassador Morgenthau arranged with the Standard Oil Company to have the initial gold payment from the United States released through Standard's representative in Constantinople. From there, it was transported aboard a battle cruiser, the USS North Carolina} with his son-in-law Maurice Wertheim serving as his personal emissary.
Delivering the American gold and seeing to its equitable distribution among the Palestinian Jews' was a difficult, highly visible assignment, which inspired mixed reviews from the local Jewish press. The Palestine Jews were acrimonious and fragmented, split between the Zionist agricultural colonies and the religious groups concentrated in Jerusalem. A supposedly representative committee led by Dr. Ruppin, head of the Zionist office in Jaffa, was authorized by donors in New York to set up a loan institute. At Morgenthau's suggestion, Aaron Aaronsohn, managing director of the. Jewish Agricultural Experiment Station at Haifa, was added to this. body. All of these men were ardent - though not necessarily political ­ Zionists, but religious Jews, the conspicuous minority in representation, were vocal in their claims.
The American battle cruiser North Carolina entered Jaffa harbor on Thursday, September 24, 1914, like a miraculous apparition. Dr. Ruppin, in the company of the new American consul, the Reverend Otis A. Glazebrook, welcomed Mr. Wertheim. "There was a large crowd on the land-station to witness the scene," Ruppin reported to Morgenthau. "The fact that the son-in-law of the American Ambassador on board an American cruiser has brought subsidies from the United States for the Jews of this country has deeply impressed the Palestinian population and will no doubt have a wholesome effect on people's attitude ... and the people have become aware of the fact that, although the Jewish community here is not yet strong as far as the number of its members are concerned, it receives strong support from our co-religionists abroad."                                 .
The gold itself, which Wertheim carried in a suitcase, caused great excitement. According to Ruppin, it was immediately deposited in the Anglo Palestine Company Building. Barbara. Tuchman recalled her father telling the story of locking himself in a room with the gold and refusing to come out until the loudly disputing  parties reached an agreement.
The same day, Dr. Ruppin wrote Morgenthau that he had given Wertheim "the same tour which I have made with you of the Jewish colonies in the Jaffa-Tel Aviv area." Two days later, Saturday, Wertheim received the heads of several institutions in Jerusalem "and requested them to inform other Jerusalemites that the money was not intended for individuals who lived on charity, but to aId 111 its hour of need the yishuv which supported itself by productive work." Concerned with matters of life and death, these meetings appear to have been exempt from Sabbath restrictions. "On Sunday morning Mr. Wertheim visited the Haham Bashl [the title accorded by Ottoman rulers to the chief rabbis, and in Palestine to the chief Sephardic rabbi] and at two that afternoon the Haham Bashl accompanied by several members of the committee, returned the call." The following day the distribution committee went to Haifa to meet with Aaronsohn and make the final arrangements for appor­tioning the funds. Everything had been "done with lightning speed, in the American way."
Before the end of 1914 the Wertheim clan were all back home in New York. Wise wrote Morgenthau that he thought Wertheim's "visit to Palestine and what he did there will make a permanent difference throughout his life. We had the delight of seeing Alma as well as Maurice and those three lovely little girls."
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I think this photo is from Mostly Morgenthau



Maurice Wertheim with 
Governor Al Smith, Theresa 
Helburn and others, at the 
cornerstone-laying 
ceremony for the New York 
Theatre Guild in Dec. 1924. 
Maurice Wertheim was a 
member of the Guild’s 
Board of Managers.  
 
During this early period the 
Guild developed enduring 
relationships with 
renowned playwrights such 
as George Bernard Shaw 
and Eugene O’Neill.  

Dec 1924 cornerstone laying ceremony New York Theatre Guild 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
‪Al Smith, Maurice Wertheim, Theresa Helburn, and others.. Probably Dec 1924 at the cornerstone laying ceremony of a theatre, the new home for the New York Theatre Guild, paid for by the Guild's $500,000 bond issue without the aid of any rich "good fairies." The Guild's Board of Managers, responsible for its choice of plays and general policy, consisted of "a banker, a lawyer, an actress, an artist, a producer and a playwright"; that is, in the same order, Maurice Wertheim, Lawrence Langner, Helen Westley, Lee Simonson, Theresa Helburn, and Philip Moeller. Of these, Theresa Helburn, tireless and ubiquitous Executive Director and Mrs. Westley, an accomplished actress of vigorous originality, were the pair chiefly accountable for the birth and rise of the Guild. Finding the theatre "frankly commercial," the Guild has never posed as a society of pure artists. Time Magazine, 14 Dec 1924

Theresa Helburn‬From Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia - Theresa Helburn (January 12, 1887 – August 18, 1959)[1] was an important figure in 20th-century American theater and a Bryn Mawr College alumna, best known for her work with New York's Theatre Guild.Theresa Helburn at the laying of the cornerstone of the Guild Theatre in 1924.Involved with The Theatre Guild from its foundation in 1919, Helburn served first as a literary manager and then as casting director and eventually became (along with Lawrence Langner) a co-producer. The Theatre Guild specialized in bringing the highest-quality drama of Europe and America to Broadway stages. Breaking away from the common practice of single-ticket sales and productions built around famous stars, the Theatre Guild built a large and loyal season subscription audience as well as establishing enduring relationships with renowned playwrights such as George Bernard Shaw and Eugene O'Neill, as well as the actors Alfred Lunt and Lynn Fontanne, among many other notable names. She and the other founding members of this production company brought serious, ground-breaking plays back to the Broadway stage, and together they proved that it was possible to produce work that was both artistically and commercially successful.



Maurice Wertheim Barbara Wertheim Tuchman 

In 1935, Maurice Wertheim purchased The Nation, the oldest liberal weekly magazine 
in the United States, when it was on the brink of bankruptcy, and his daughter, 
Barbara, began to write for the magazine.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Pulitzer Prize winning historian and journalist Barbara Tuchman (1912-1989) was best known for her works on 20th-century wars although she also wrote on 14th-century France.
 
Barbara Tuchman was born in New York City on January 30, 1912, the daughter of Maurice and Alma (Morganthau) Wertheim. The Wertheim family was wealthy and had a tradition of interest in public affairs. Barbara's maternal grandfather was Henry Morganthau, Sr., a banker and American ambassador to Turkey during President Wilson's administration, and her uncle, Henry Morganthau, Jr., was Franklin Roosevelt's secretary of the treasury. Barbara's father was a banker and a publisher as well as having many outside interests, including founding the Theatre Guild and serving as president of the American Jewish Committee.

Barbara attended private schools in New York and graduated from Radcliffe College in 1933. Her early interest in history is shown by her honors thesis, "The Moral Justification of the British Empire." one of the professors she admired most at Radcliffe was the noted historian C.H. Mcllliwain, he did not supervise her thesis. Instead, it was supervised by an English tutor who was little interested in the topic. Barbara did not pursue an advanced degree in history; her formal education in the topic ended in 1933.

Her informal education, however, continued. After graduation from Radcliffe she accompanied her grandfather to the World Economic Conference in London, where she observed economists and statesmen attempting to end the world-wide depression. When she returned from Europe she began her working career as an unpaid research assistant at the Institute of Pacific Relations in 1934. The following year she went to Tokyo for the institute as an editorial assistant, a raise in rank but not in pay. While working in Tokyo she sold her first article and embarked on a journalistic career.

Returning to the United States in 1936, she became an editorial assistant at The Nation, which her father had purchased from Oswald Garrison Villard. The following year she went to Spain to cover the civil war for the journal. Sympathetic to the Republican cause, she then became a staff writer for War in Spain, a publication subsidized by the Spanish government, in London from 1937 to 1938. During this same time she put together a very slim book entitled The Lost British Policy: Britain and Spain Since 1700 (1938). The book, which was a rapid survey of relationships between the two nations, argued for British involvement in the current affairs of Spain. Next, Tuchman became the American correspondent for the New Statesmen and Nation for a year before returning to New York City.

On June 18, 1940, she married Lester R. Tuchman, a physician who was to become the president of the medical board of City Hospital in Queens. Barbara Tuchman began a domestic life and started a family which consisted of three daughters - Lucy, Jessica, and Alma. When World War II started and her husband enlisted in the Medical Corps, Tuchman followed him to Fort Rucker, Alabama. When he went overseas, she returned to work. From 1943 to 1945 she held a position on the Far East desk of the Office of War Information (OWI) utilizing her experiences with the Institute of Pacific Relations. When the war ended she returned to domestic life.




In 1935, Maurice Wertheim purchased from the Chubb Family (Chubb Insurance) the lease 
for private fishing on the entire Saint Anne River on the Gaspe Peninsula in Quebec. On the 
river, he built a lodge at the Serenity Pool. In 1969, all leases for private fishing on the Saint 
Anne River were ceded by Cecile Wertheim to the Government of Quebec. 

Courtesy Joan Charles. 



Pulitzer Prize winning 

Presenter
Presentation Notes

She won the Pulitzer Prize twice: for The Guns of August; and Stilwell and the American Experience in China 1911-45, a biography of General Joseph Stilwell.     




Photo by Alfred Charles, 
courtesy Joan Charles.  

Maurice and Cecile 
Wertheim, late 1940s.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Alfred C. Charles was Maurice Wertheim’s assistant from the 1920s until Maurice’s death in 1950. 



Maurice and Alma divorced after 20 years of marriage in 1929. In 1930, Maurice married 
Ruth White, they divorced in 1935. On June 1, 1944, Maurice married Cecile Berlage.   

Maurice and Cecile Wertheim, circa 1945.  
Courtesy Lynn Lilienthal 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
NYT, Dec 27, 1919: Divorces M. Wertheim. Daughter of Henry Morgenthau Charges Mental Cruelty.  RENO, Nev., Dec 26 (AP).  “Mrs. Alma Morgenthau Wertheim, daughter of Henry Morgenthau, former ambassador to Turkey, obtained a divorce here today from Maurice Wertheim, New York banker. Custody of the three children was granted to Mrs. Wertheim. The father, by agreement, is to pay part of the cost of maintenance.
Mrs. Wertheim charged her husband with mental cruelty. She said he showed no appreciation of her feelings but was absorbed entirely in his business. She tried to make a success of their married life, she said, but without result. He showed no interest in the home nor the things she did or said, but ridiculed and criticized her. He sought to dominate her, she said, and at times gave way to outbursts of temper. They were married in New York April 15, 1909.”

New York Times, 11 Mar 1930, p. 20. Ruth White Warfield of New York received a divorce from Frederick Parkman Warfield, New York lawyer, who makes his home at Orchard Farm, Port Chester. She charged that he nagged her and showed no interest in her affairs. The custody of their 11-year-old son and property rights were settled out of court. They were married in Meriden, Conn., April 18, 1917. Ruth married Maurice Wertheim “in the spring of 1930.”

Cecile Berlage is the widow of Charles W. Seiberling, owner of the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company, who died at the age of 32 in 1928. She was active with the Federation of Jewish Philanthropies and the Girl Scouts Council of Greater New York. 



Maurice Wertheim bought this circa 1824 house (modern address 2777 Montauk Highway, South Haven) 
on 25 acres north of Montauk Highway for his assistant, A. C. Charles, to live in while Maurice stayed at 
the Stealaway. The house and property were left to Mr. Charles in Wertheim’s will.  
(1820s Theodosia Carman House) 

Photo courtesy Jon Deitz Courtesy Joan Charles 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Maurice brought the house and 25 acres from the Carmans River Corporation, a.k.a. Childs and Erickson. 



Sept. 1946: Maurice Wertheim, captain of the 
American chess team, addressing spectators at the 
opening of the U.S. – Soviet matches in Moscow. 
 Betsy Schulberg collection. 

Degas to Matisse: The Maurice Wertheim Collection, by John O'Brien of the Fogg 
Art Museum, Harvard University, 1988. 



Anne Wertheim would become Anne 
Simon, an award-winning 
environmental author whose works 
included Neptune’s Revenge, the 
Ocean of Tomorrow.    

Barbara Wertheim would 
go on to win two Pulitzer 
Prizes. 

Maurice Wertheim’s family circa 1947 

Courtesy Jessica Tuchman Mathews 

Presenter
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Anne Wertheim was the author of Neptune's Revenge: The Ocean of Tomorrow , Bantam, 1985

The Thomas Langman pictured above had stayed with his grandfather at Stealaway a few times. He visited the refuge in 2011, see next slide. 

Josephine, the oldest of Maurice and Alma’s three children, is not pictured. 

The following is a resume found in the Josephine Wertheim Pomerance papers. It is dated l979, one year before Josephine’s death in l980
 "Ms. Pomerance is a Consultant, U.S. Arms Control and Disarmament Agency, l977 to date. She is UN Observer for the Americans for Democratic Action, l972 to date (1979). "She was a founder and is presently Co-Chairperson with Dr. Betty Goetz Lall, of the ad hoc Task Force for the Nuclear Test Ban, l97l to date. "Ms. Pomerance is also presently a member of: - The Board of Directors of Americans for Democratic Action. - The National Board of the United Nations Association of the United States of America. (UNA/USA) - The Commission to Study the Organization of Peace. - The Council of the Arts of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. "During May-June l978, she was an Advisor to the U.S. Mission, United Nations Special Session on Disarmament. "From l970-l977, she was Co-Chairperson of the UNA/USA`s Committee on Arms Control, Disarmament and Peacekeeping of the Conference of United Nations Representatives, UNA/USA Council of Organizations. "From l972-l977, she was President of the Southwest Fairfield County (Connecticut) Chapter of the UNA/USA "Ms. Pomerance was a member of the Carter-Mondale Task Force on Foreign Policy during the l976 presidential campaign. "In l972, she was a special consultant to the Senate Subcommittee on Arms Control and International Organization (The Hon. Edmund S. Muskie, Chairperson) and to the Members of Congress for Peace through Law (The Hon. Dick C. Clark, Chairperson). "In l97l, she received a special award from the UNA/USA in recognition of her work on the Disarmament Issues Committee from l96l-l97l, and for her "long and outstanding service to disarmament and a better world order." "In l970-l97l, she served as a member of the Democratic Policy Council Committee on Arms Control and Defense Policy (Paul C. Warnke, Chairperson). "In l965, she received the "Swords into Plowshares" award from the Atomic Industrial Forum for her work in promoting the Nuclear Non Proliferation Treaty and the peaceful uses of atomic energy. The award culminated two years of work by the Educational Committee to Halt Atomic Weapons Spread, an ad hoc group founded and directed by Ms. Pomerance under the Chairmanship of Dr. Arthur H. Larson of Duke University. "In l965, Pomerance was appointed to the Arms Control and Disarmament Committee of the National Citizens Commission for International Cooperation (working for the UN peacekeeping section) under the chairmanship of Dr. Jerome Wiesner, President of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. "In l963, she helped initiate the campaign to win public support for a nuclear test ban agreement, acting as Secretary for the Citizens Committee for a Nuclear Test Ban - Ambassador James J. Wadsworth, Chairperson. "In l96l-l962, she was special advisor on Non-Governmental Organizations to the United States Mission to the United Nations. Previously she served as United Nations Observer on Disarmament Issues for the American Association for the United Nations, an office she is currently filling for Americans for Democratic Action. "In l950, she assisted in the formation of the Committee for World Disarmament and World Development, a project of the Jane Addams Peace Association of WILPF. "Pomerance has lectured and written widely on the subject of disarmament and nuclear control. She has been called to testify before Congressional Committees on disarmament issues, and has been publishedin The New York Times, The Washington Star, The St. Louis Post Dispatch, The Boston Globe and other newspapers. She has also written for such publications as The Nation, The Bulletin of the Atomic Scientists, and others. She has participated in many conferences such as Pugwash and Stanley Foundation Strategy for Peace conferences. "Pertinent material published by her ad hoc Task Force for the Nuclear Test Ban was used in President Carter's noted address at the United Nations in May of l978. Dr. Richard Gardner of Columbia University, one of President Carter's chief foreign policy advisors said of Jo Pomerance, 'There is no one who has done more to achieve a nuclear test ban treaty.' "A graduate of Smith College, Pomerance received an M.A. in Political Science from The New York School of Social Research. She is married to Ralph Pomerance, an architect. They have three children. She is the granddaughter of the late Ambassador Henry Morgenthau, Sr., who served in President Wilson's administration, the niece of Henry Morgenthau Jr., Secretary of the Treasury under Franklin D. Roosevelt, and sister of Barbara Tuchman, author of The Guns in August, the l963 Pulitzer Prize selection." 




Maurice Wertheim’s 
grandson, Tom 
Langman, at 
Stealaway in 2011. 



New York Times, 28 May 1950, p. 
44. M. WERTHEIM DIES; LONG A 
FINANCIER Sportsman and Philanthropist 
Founded Banking Firm Here—Ex-
Publisher of Nation  Maurice Wertheim, 
sportsman, banker and philanthropist, 
who was former publisher of The Nation, 
liberal weekly, died of a heart attack last 
night at his estate in Cos Cob, Conn. He 
was 64 years old. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Tom Stewart became the first refuge manager in 1975. The Wertheim Refuge USF&WS office was initially located at Brookhaven National Lab, building 134.



Robinson Duck Farm, South Haven, 1948, Maurice Wertheim’s land in background. The Old South Haven Church 
in foreground – the last remnant of the former Colonial center – was moved 4 miles to the west in 1960. 

Photo courtesy of Ron Bush 

Maurice Wertheim game 
preserve, 1948  



On the west end of today’s refuge were typical Long Island farmers. 
Pictured: Cedar Farm on Little Neck circa 1880s. 

Courtesy George P. Morse collection 

Post 1974: Land added to the refuge after the USF&WS took possession.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
This house was allowed to deteriorate and become vandalized by the former owners although they were made aware of its historical interest. It was past the point of restoration by the Fish and Wildlife Service when they acquired it in 1979 (Deitz). Most the ~300-acre Little Neck peninsula was farmland from the late 1700s through to the middle of the 20th century. 



Courtesy Meg and George Koch, 
Wallace Keene collection 

Mrs. Barteau, left, and Prudence 
Hawkins at Cedar Farm circa 1880s. Courtesy Meg and George Koch. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Hawkins Farm occupied the western portion of Little Neck along the east side of Little Neck Run. Little Neck is bounded by Yaphank Creek on the east, the Carman's River on the south, and Little Neck Run on the west.

The Hawkins Farm off Montauk Highway at Brookhaven Hamlet seems to have first come into the Hawkins family in the middle to late 18th century, possibly by Nathaniel Hawkins (1752-1823). His sons, the Rev. Nathaniel and David Hawkins are both known to have been farmers in the general vicinity and both were named executors of Nathaniel's will. David seems to have farmed the Little Neck parcel. The last Hawkins to own the farm was David's son Augustus Andrew Hawkins (1826-1914, "Little Gus"). This house, at the south end of the farm tract, was occupied by Gus and his sister Prudence (1828-1915) after the death of her husband.

There are two Hawkins family cemeteries on the old farm. At the north end, near to Montauk Highway is a small, much deterioated cemetery known as the Nathaniel Hawkins cemetery (near Little Neck Run). Not far from the site of the Augustus Hawkins homestead is a larger cemetery known as the the David Hawkins. Additional research is required to trace the title of this farm. The tract is now within the Wertheim National Wildlife Refuge. –John Deitz	




Augustus and Prudence Hawkins at Cedar Farm, 1890 

George Morse collection 

Augustus’s 1880-1892 
diary is on file with 
the Yaphank Historical 
Society. 

Presenter
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Augustus, a.k.a. “Little Gus”, kept a dairy, or daybook, from 1880 to 1892 and from 1892 - 1904. Both books have been digitized and are online at: 
http://brookhavensouthhaven.org/hamletpeople/tng/getperson.php?personID=I660&tree=hamlet

The 1880-1892 book is at the Yaphank Historical Society and the 1892 – 1904 book is at the Post Morrow Foundation. 





Barteau 
Homestead 

Hawkins Homestead 

Area excavated by 
slaves in 1811 for 
firewood and coal 
shipping. 

Barto Road 
(aka Honey 
Lane) 

Boat dock 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
n late 1936, John C. Rochester "rented" the property from "Mrs. Charles Nelson," that is, Beatrice Harris Nelson. By late Spring of 1937, John apparently was married to Beatrice. Charles Nelson purchased the farm from the Barteau family in 1925 (see Charles W. Nelson). Charles transferred the property to Beatrice on 29 January 1929. Charles dies in 1930 after about a year's ilness.  This property was the former Barteau Farm (Brookhaven/South Haven Historic Site ID Br03.1-S), which by the time of the sale to Charles Nelson occupied the east side Little Neck from the Carmans River nearly to the Montauk Highway, that is, basically from the east side of the Old Barto Road to Yaphank Creek. (The actual boundaries are described in the above reference).  The Rochester house (located near to the river), is thought to have been one of the original Barteau family residences (perhaps remodeled and renovated during the Nelson tenancy), and is said to have been destroyed by fire in 1976. The residence was occupied year-round by Beatrice's mother, Emma Mayer Harris, and by Beatrice's daughter and son-in-law's family (Jule and Ralph Doddridge)—although all took up residence during the summer, holidays, and special occasions. They also had city residences. Later in John and Beatrice's lifetimes, it apparently became their primary permanent residence until their deaths. It is said that the house was still occupied (by a caretaker or servant) when it burned.  The road to the house was then known as Honey Lane and now as Old Barto Road; it also provided access to the old David/Augustus Hawkins residence  circa 1800 (Historic Site ID Br03) which was their nearest neighbor on the west side of the Neck. The Hawkins house remained habitable into the 1950s. The road name may have been derived from honey bee hives known to have been maintained by the Hawkins family.  Little Neck Run, the western boundary of Little Neck, is often considered the boundary between the Hamlets of Brookhaven and South Haven, although the Neck was often loosely referred to as being in one hamlet or the other. Little Neck is now incorporated into the Wertheim National Wildlife refuge, and little evidence (except for foundation remnants) remains of either residence or the former farms.  John C. Rochester was known from local newspaper accounts to have summered and visited in the adjacent community of Bellport during the 1920s and 1930s; this was likely how he became acquainted with the property and Beatrice. Since Rochester was a well known sailor, he likely used the dockage area/canal built by the Barteau's near the mouth of Yaphank Creek for his boats.  He also was acquainted with C. Oliver Wellington who long had a summer estate in Brookhaven, it being reported in the New York Times that he almost beat Mr. Wellington in a squash racquets match. The Wellington estate was nearby to the Rochester's "as the crow flies," being just a half mile or so down the Carmans River from the Rochester's, but was several miles actual driving distance (it is said that there was a foot path and bridge over Little Neck Run between Little Neck and Fire Place Neck that would have made for a very comfortable walk between the two estates, although intermediate properties would have had to have been traversed.)




Mary Jane Raynor, right, at Cedar Farm circa 1910. 
Yaphank Creek and  Carmans River in background.  

Courtesy Post Morrow 



Elizabeth Hawkins, Cedar Farm circa 1910 

Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 



David Hawkins Cemetery 
in 1999. All 24 
headstones are inscribed 
with the surname 
Hawkins.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Photo Marty Van Lith



At the David Hawkins Cemetery in April, 2014, with 
Hawkins family descendants.  



Nina Petera, pink sweater, and William Wisbeck, in back with hat, are the only great grandchildren of 
Erastus C. Hawkins, one of 19th century America’s most prominent civil engineers. The family has 
been looking for his grave for more than 30 years. Picture taken April 11, 2014.  



The Carmans River was included into the NYS Wild, Scenic and Recreational Act in 1974. 

Courtesy Ben Savage 



Thanks to the efforts of 
Dennis Puleston, Ben 
Savage and others in 
Brookhaven hamlet 
these hundreds of acres, 
from Old Barto Road 
west to Old Stump Road 
to the River, were 
purchased by The 
Nature Conservancy in 
1979 and conveyed to 
the U.S.A. in 1983.  

Presenter
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The RFK Associates, Inc. holdings were rather extensive (though not huge properties, they were of substantial size) and weren't sold to the Nature Conservancy until 31 May 1979. RFK Associates appears to have been incorporated by Gino Robbiano.

The Nature Conservancy didn't convey those properties to the U. S. A. until 20 Sep 1983 (Stanley was still living in the Michelson barn, had trouble evicting him).



Most of Little 
Neck acquired 
in 1979 by TNC.  

Through a stroke of good fortune, a few years after the USF&WS officially  
possessed the Wertheim Refuge, several large parcels of land totaling 
approximately 400 acres from Old Barto Road to Old Stump Road and from 
Montauk Highway to the river became available and were purchased by The 
Nature Conservancy for the refuge.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
In 1975 The Nature Conservancy, on behalf of the USF&WS, purchased approximately 300 acres of the Little Neck peninsula. The biggest pieces were the Michelsen property, the former Hawkins farm of about 100 acres, which was said to be in tax default, and the Leskowitz Duck farm which was going out of business, also about 100 acres.  The Old Stump Realty was trying to come up with a development plan for the entire peninsula. The area that was purchased was most of the land from Old Barto Road to Old Stump Road, from Montauk Highway to the river. Not included was what became known as Southaven Properties, 128-acres north of the LIRR straddling Yaphank Creek and the 12-acre South Haven School, which was once part of the refuge but condemned to build the school (1961). 



Upon her death in 1981,  Lucille Wellington left her Meadow Lane home, barn, 
outbuildings and approximately 160 acres to the Wertheim Refuge.  

Photo courtesy Jen Clement 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Lucile Pierce Wellington was Betty Rohde Puleston’s mother. Lucile’s first married name was Rohde, Betty was the only child of this marriage. Lucile remarried to Charles Oliver Wellington with whom she had two daughters, Nancy and Patricia. 



M. Van Lith Dec 2007 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Winter sunlight reflecting off the Wellington wetlands during a flood tide, Dec 2007. 



Southaven Properties 

The last major land addition to the 
Wertheim Refuge came in 1998 with the 
acquisition of the 128-acre Southaven 
Properties straddling Yaphank Creek. That 
year, the refuge was also added to the Core 
Preservation area of the Central Pine 
Barrens and the Friends of Wertheim NRW 
incorporated. 



March 16, 1996, Marilyn England and I gave testimony 
before the House Appropriations Committee requesting 
$2.1 million to acquire Southaven Properties.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The last major land addition to the Wertheim Refuge came in 1998 with the acquisition of the 128-acre Southaven Properties straddling Yaphank Creek. That year, the refuge was also added to the Core Preservation area of the Central Pine Barrens and the Friends of Wertheim NRW incorporated.

Maurice Wertheim had left this property in his will to some relatives, locally known as the Weilder Property. It was sold several times and wound up in the hands of developer Gary Passavia. Gary Passavia was proposing to build 128 housing units. Because it was an inholding to the refuge it had been “blue lined”, i.e., pre-approved for acquisition should the opportunity arise. On March 16, 1996, Marilyn England and I flew down to Washington DC to give testimony before the House Appropriations sub-committee asking for $2.1 million. The property was acquired in 1998. 

Southaven Properties, Inc., acquired two parcels of land on 15 Jan 1987 along the south side of Montauk Highway, east of the new South Haven school building.  One was quite large, about 114 acres. Southaven Properties, Inc., later of 884 Jericho Turnpike, Woodbury, (but in 1987, at 915 Montauk Hwy, Bayport) had purchased the properties from Brookhaven Associates, (Liber 10239, p. 34).




The Southaven Properties coalition celebrating our 
victory in October, 1998 (Pat Martinkovic took picture). 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Left to right –Lee Snead, Anita Cohen, Jen Puleston Clement, Karen Rowley, Dan Morris (standing), Marty Van Lith, Faith ,McCutcheon (standing), Marilyn England, Anne Meinhold (standing), Tom Ludlam, Charlie Meinhold (standing),, Art Cooley (standing), Nancy Cooley, and Dennis Puleston. 



Marilyn England, Pat Martinkovic and Marty Van Lith at the Southaven Properties acquisition 
celebration Oc.t 28, 1998. 



Friends of Wertheim organized in 1998 and Incorporated in July of 1999. Above, some of the 
first board of directors at TNC’s Mashomack Manor House on Shelter Island in Oct. 1999. 

Presenter
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Picture taken at TNC’s Mashomack, Shelter Island, Manor House on the FOW board’s first retreat. It was here that we elected officers and set an agenda for FOW. Left to right: Lee Snead, Peter Hutchings, Ellen Dillon, Anne Meinhold, on mantel Alyssa Dillon, Kathleen O’Connor, Marty Van Lith and Ray Collins (who was only on FOW board one year).



Protest  Against Proposed Home Depot, May 1, 1999 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Home Depot had an application before the Town board to build an outlet center along the tidal portion of Carmans River. FOW took the lead in forming a coalition of civic and environmental groups, including EDF, in defeating this proposal. The 20-acre site was acquired through a leveraged purchase with Town, State and Federal government as partners. 



On May 19, 2012, the Long Island 
National Wildlife Refuge Complex 
celebrated the grand opening of their new 
visitor center and headquarters facility.  
 

Presentation by Marty Van Lith 



The End.  
Q & A. 

Thank you to Richard Thomas for 
assistance with research for this 
presentation. 





The following 
are additional 
historical slides,  
could be added 
if needed. 



Maurice Wertheim with his daughters Barbara (standing) and Anne (sitting at far right), and 
his granddaughters, circa 1948. In the center, kneeling, is Maurice Wertheim’s wife, Cecile.  
Both daughters would become famous authors: Barbara won two Pulitzer prizes and is 
known best for her book on the beginning of WWI: The Guns of August. Anne was an 
environmentalist whose books explored the perils to the world's seas and shorelines.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Barbara was with her father in 1914 on their way to visit her grandfather in Turkey aboard ship in Mediterranean and witnessed the first shots of WWI. The following is an excerpt from a book by Henry Morgenthau III, Mostly Morgenthaus:   [Henry] MORGENTHAU'S TWO-YEAR-OLD GRANDDAUGHTER Barbara Wertheim (later Tuchman), her parents, and two sisters were on board the Sicilia, a small Italian passenger steamer, in the Aegean Sea on their way to the American embassy in Constantinople for the family's summer vacation [August 1914]. The historic events that took place at sea and after they reached port "became a big family legend," Tuchman recalled. "I've told it many times, but I didn't remember it personally." Almost fifty years later, in The Guns of August, she described the scene without reference to its autobiographical connection, stating that "the daughter, son-in-law and three grandchildren [herself included] of the American Ambassador, Mr. Henry Morgenthau ... brought an exciting tale of the boom of guns, puffs of white smoke, and the twisting and maneu­vering of faraway ships." Indeed, the Wertheims had witnessed the exchange of fire between the British ship Gloucester and the German warships Goeben and Breslau.   

Anne Wertheim would write The thin edge: Coast and Man in Crisis" (1978),

NYT Obituary: Anne Wertheim Simon, 82, Who Wrote of Threats to the Sea By WOLFGANG SAXONPublished: July 31, 1996

Anne W. Simon, an environmentalist whose books explored the perils to the world's seas and shorelines, particularly on her beloved Martha's Vineyard, died on Monday at her Manhattan home. She was 82 and also had a home in Chilmark, Mass.At her death she was working on a book on the changing nature of Martha's Vineyard and what might be done to save the island where she had summered for many years. An article based on its first chapter was published in the July issue of the monthly Martha's Vineyard Magazine.The article echoed her earlier book, "No Island Is an Island: The Ordeal of Martha's Vineyard" (1973). There she told the tale of how the Vineyard, after hundreds of years of slumber, surrendered to tract subdivisions, an explosion of second homes, sewage spillovers and traffic jams.Another volume, "The Thin Edge: Coast and Man in Crisis" (1978), discussed the precarious state of dunes and beaches, wetlands and estuaries everywhere that economic development reaches them. "Neptune's Revenge: The Ocean of Tomorrow" (1984) was an unsparing critique of the environmental damage to oceans from oil spills, overfishing, the greenhouse effect and the dumping of sewage, toxins and radioactive waste.

Anne Wertheim was born in Cos Cob, Conn., and in 1935 graduated from Smith College, where she edited the campus newspaper. She earned a master's degree at the School of Social Work of Columbia University. She was a writer at radio station WNYC, became a television critic for The Nation and subsequently wrote for McCall's, Good Housekeeping and other periodicals. Her first book was "Stepchild in the Family: A View of Children in Remarriage" (1964), a primer based on her own experience as a stepchild and as a stepparent.She was married three times and had taken the surname of her last husband, Prof. Walter Werner, while keeping her pen name. He died in 1986. Her previous marriages, to Dr. Louis Langman and Robert Simon, ended in divorce. She is survived by a son and three daughters from her first marriage: Thomas Langman of Washington, Betsy L. Schulberg of Westhampton Beach, L.I., Lynn L. Lilienthal of Reston, Va., and Deborah L. Lesser of Berkeley, Calif., and 11 grandchildren.



The Homan family were very early farmers (18 and 19th century) on the 
northern part of today’s refuge property, their homestead and farmland 
bordered on the west border of Sam Carmans property. The above pictured 
plot at Oaklawn Cemetery was disinterred from the family cemetery on refuge 
property in the 1930s. Headstones are from the early 19th century.  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
See:    http://brookhavensouthhaven.org/HamletPeople/tng/showmap.php?cemeteryID=21&tree=

An inventory was found in the files of the Town of Brookhaven Historian's Office and photocopied November, 2007. It appears to be an inventory of the headstones in the original burying ground. In 1939 the Town Historian reported that the cemetery was abandoned and no headstones were visible.

(1939 description) "Former Homan private graveyard, about 500 feet south of Montauk Highway, (Route 27), on the east side of an old hedgerow, and about opposite the old homestead of William Osborn, now (1939) owned by Charles Engelhaupt, South Haven.” This is opposite the eastern end of Old South Country Road where it meets Montauk Hwy. It is between the former Robinson Farm Field and a dirt Road the the refuge referred to as the “Truck Route” before the LIRR closed it off. 

The Homan homestead is believed to have been next to and west of the Sam Carman. The farm probably extended from South County Road to Carmans River, since it was before the Railroad it was undivided. See Beers 1873 map. 

Two of those buried in this cemetery fought in the American Revolution. Mordecai Homan signed the Town of Brookhaven Association of 17 May 1775, Third Company (Capt. Nathan Rose.) The Associators chose Selah Strong in the presence of William Smith, Nathaniel Woodhull, and Josiah Smith. Homan's signing at the same time were Ebenezer, Ezekiel, Joseph, Mordecai, Mordecai, Jr., Mordecai 3d.  Mordecai was also found on the Pay Roll of Lt. Isaac Davis' Company (probably earlier than the above Association as some on the list also appeared on the above Association. His name was recorded as Mordica and he received 0-6-2 (six shillings, two pence). 
Jonathan Howell was also a Revolutionary war vet. He was enlisted in Col. Josiah Smith's Suffolk County Militia (Minute Men).



By 1745 the grist, 
saw and fulling mills 
were in operation, 
and the entire 
Yaphank Neck 
purchase of 1688, 
minus two acres 
that the church 
stood on, was sold 
by a group to John 
Havens. About 40 
years later, parts of 
this would belong to 
Sam Carman. 



The acquisition of water for Brooklyn from Suffolk County 
was stopped by the Carll Smith Burr Jr.'s Water Act. 



Tangier 
Smiths 

At the turn of the 
20th century the 
Suffolk Club owned 
or leased nearly all 
of the land on the 
west side of the 
lower 6 miles of 
Carmans River. 

110’ long “Blackgrass” 
dock where the Suffolk 
Club kept their yacht. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Suffolk Club was near it’s end in 1902 and began selling off some of its land especially along the lower river. I’m not using this map/Atlas in the presentation because we believe it to be inaccurate. For example, we know that John Bartlett, a.k.a. the Brooklyn Water Company, owned 200 acres south of the RR on Yaphank Neck until 1916.



Courtesy Post Morrow 
Foundation 



Located on today’s refuge land, the Joseph Carman family home, built prior 
to 1858, located at the end of Beaver Dam Road along the river (across 
from Squassux Landing). Burned down circa 1966. Picture is looking  WNW 
from the river. Land acquired in 1979 and conveyed to the U.S.A. in 1983. . 

Courtesy Post Morrow Foundation 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
E-mail from Bob Quinn, current (2014) living on General McLean Dr in Bellport but former long time resident of 191 Old Stump Road in Brookhaven hamlet:

Thanks Marty:  I’ve put June 16th on the calendar.  The Michelsen property on the river was offered to developers by Grace and Rolf but as far I know they ended up selling it to  were the ones that finally sold it to Nature Conservancy for ( I  remember hearing)  $6000.  an acre.  The sale was held up for several months pending the Michelsen’s  attempts to move Stanley off the property.  That was one of NC”s requirements.  There were several hearings concerning the sale to developers and Grace was upset at  the time that it didn’t go through.  You might  check  for additional information with Tom when he gets back from Florida.   Did you know that the property was also  used for many years as a private hunting club?  Another interesting  bit  is that the 14 bedroom house that burnt down on Easter weekend, 1965, contained the piano used by Irving Berlin when he was at Camp Yaphank.  According to Mrs. Timmy, who lived in Mike & Lynn’s house, each of the bed rooms had a water view.  Mrs. T. worked for  Mrs.  B. Michelsen (she lived in our house on Beaver Dam) and often was called on, she said,  to make up the bedrooms for paying guests at the boarding house.
 --Bob Quinn

House probably dates to about the time of Joseph Carman’s marriage to Abigail Ketcham in 1843. The house was destroyed by fire Easter Weekend 1965. 13-acres of the former Carman/Lush property (before Mickesen acquired the rest) was sold to James Post in 1917 to become Squassux Landing. 



In 1853, Silas Homan, the 
Fireplace postmaster (for a 
region including both 
Fireplace Neck and the mills), 
informed the public that the 
name of the Fireplace post 
office in the Town of 
Brookhaven had been 
changed to South Haven. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Creating and naming the much smaller community of South Haven came much later, in 1853. That was when Silas Homan, the Fireplace postmaster (for a region including both Fireplace Neck and the mills), informed the public that the name of the Fire-place post office in the Town of Brookhaven had been changed to South Haven.

The article about the naming of South Haven was the naming of the Parish of South Haven, not the naming of the little community of South Haven. It is an important distinction. The naming of the community of South Haven did not come about until it was decided to divide the region served by the Fire Place post office into two smaller regions, each having its own post office.

Before 12 Nov 1853 the Fireplace post office had sometimes been near the mills, at the east, and sometimes nearer the meadows on Fireplace Neck to the west. 



Deeds Researched in Suffolk County Clerk’s Office by Dr. Richard Thomas,  

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Maurice Wertheim was not the first Manhattan business magnate to buy up properties along the southern part of the Carmans River. The deed for the parcels that Maurice Wertheim conveyed to the USA in 1947 contains a 23-page list of separate parcels, but a very large number of those parcels had already been "assembled."  About 12 pages of parcels had already been acquired and were held by a single entity, the Carman River Corporation. 



BNL 

Mastic 

Bellport 

Yaphank 

Fire 
Place 

Flow rate = 35,000,000 
gallons per day (USGS) 

Flow rate = 46,500,000 
gallons per day (USGS) 

Flow rate = 15,600,000 
gallons per day (USGS) 

Flow rate= 
2,500,000 
gal/day 

The flow rate 
measured at 
South Haven in 
1907 was the 
same as today. 



The Advance 
April 4, 1973 



1927  
Carmans River Corp 

Today’s Wm Floyd Pkwy 



Little Neck Run, 
April 2007 

Photo: Jen  
Clement 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The damage from the ducks farms all healed. 



L-r around table: Cecile Berlage Wertheim, unknown man behind her, 
Theresa Helburn, Maurice Wertheim on right, circa 1944.  

Courtesy Joan Charles 





The Robinsons duck farm, north border of refuge, was in operation from 1927 to 
circa 1980. During its most productive years up to 10,000 Peking ducks a week were 
processed here. Surely Maurice and Cecile must have gotten a whiff …  Courtesy Ken Hard 



Little Neck 

Yaphank Creek 

Little Neck Run 

Little Neck 

Old Barto Road 
(a.k.a Honey Lane) 

Hawkins and 
Barteau Farms 

1930 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Barteau Farm in Brookhaven Hamlet was likely established by Francis Barteau about 1741. It remained in the Barteau family until 1925, when it was sold to Charles W. Nelson, perhaps in settlement of Stephen's estate. Stephen is the last Barteau to own the land.  It originally occupied the east portion of Little Neck on the west side of Yaphank Creek, stretching from the Carman's River to the old South Country Road. The west portion of Little Neck was occupied by the Hawkins farm. Their residences were grouped relatively close to each other.]

Little Neck is about 350 acres.

Jeptha Wilkinson, inventor of the revolver, the reed machine (important to weaving), and the first cylindrical printing press, also lived along the South Country Road on Little Neck in today’s refuge from ~1843 until his death in 1892.His occupation was listed as farmer.  Research by John Deitz: “.. In 1846 Jeptha Avery Wilkenson purchased a farmstead in South Haven, Long Island, NY, from Daniel Terry. This farm remained with the Wilkinson family heirs until 1943 & 1944 when it was sold Maurice Wertheim, eventually to become part of the Wertheim National Wildlife Refuge.” See slide 39.

“Babes in the Woods” murder took place east of Old Stump Road and south of Montauk Hwy on May 15, 1937,  



In 1960, 10 acres of Cecile Wertheim’s (i.e., was to be future 
refuge property) was condemned by Union Free District 30 
(South Haven School) for a school building and grounds. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Voted on and approved on Nov 29, 1960. Mrs. Wertheim sued but eventually lost.



Picture: Brookhaven hamlet station, Old Stump Road and Bridge 
Street, circa 1890s. The arrival of the Railroad brought with it a new 
generation of part-time residents from New York City.   

Presenter
Presentation Notes
The cordwood and produce from the farms on today’s refuge would be shipped to New York City from the freight terminal at Brookhaven station located by Old Stump Road (as well as oysters, clams and fish from the river and bay) . 




New Visitors’ Center under construction, December 2010.  



The last major land addition to the Wertheim Refuge came in 1998 with the acquisition of the 128-
acre Southaven Properties straddling Yaphank Creek. That year, the refuge was also added to the 
Core Preservation area of the Central Pine Barrens and the Friends of Wertheim NRW incorporated. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Maurice Wertheim had left this property in his will to some relatives, locally known as the Weilder Property. It was sold several times and wound up in the hands of developer Gary Passavia. Gary Passavia was proposing to build 128 housing units. Because it was an inholding to the refuge it had been “blue lined”, i.e., pre-approved for acquisition should the opportunity arise. On March 16, 1996, Marilyn England and I flew down to Washington DC to give testimony before the House Appropriations sub-committee asking for $2.1 million. The property was acquired in 1998. 

Southaven Properties, Inc., acquired two parcels of land on 15 Jan 1987 along the south side of Montauk Highway, east of the new South Haven school building.  One was quite large, about 114 acres. Southaven Properties, Inc., later of 884 Jericho Turnpike, Woodbury, (but in 1987, at 915 Montauk Hwy, Bayport) had purchased the properties from Brookhaven Associates, (Liber 10239, p. 34).






Maurice Wertheim 
with daughters 
Barbara and 
Josephine in 1914 

Courtesy The Maurice Wertheim Collection, by John 
O'Brien of the Fogg Art Museum, Harvard University, 
1988, From Degas to Matisse. 

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Photo from Degas to Matisse: The Maurice Wertheim Collection, by John O'Brien of the Fogg Art Museum, Harvard University, 1988.



In 1935, Maurice Wertheim purchased from the Chubb Family (Chubb Insurance) the lease 
for private fishing on the entire Saint Anne River on the Gaspe Peninsula in Quebec. On the 
river, he built a lodge at the Serenity Pool. In 1969, all leases for private fishing on the Saint 
Anne River were ceded by Cecile Wertheim to the Government of Quebec. 

Maurice Wertheim with wife Cecile, fishing on the Gaspe Peninsula in 
Canada circa 1936. Courtesy Joan Charles. 
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